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Independent Auditors* Report

To the Shareholders of Bupa Arabia for Cooperative Insurance Company (A Saudi Joint Stock
Company)

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Bupa Arabia For Cooperative Insurance Company — a Saudi Joint
Stock Company (the “Company™), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December
2018, and the related statement of income, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in
equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as at 31 December 2018, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs™) as modified by the
Saudi Arabian Monetary Authority (“SAMA”) for the accounting of zakat and income tax.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”) that are cndorsed
in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the professional code of conduct and ethics, as endorsed in the Kingdom
of Saudi Arabia, that are relevant to our aundit of the financial statements, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Aundit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit
of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, a description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context;
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To the Sharcholders of Bupa Arabia for Cooperative Insurance Company (A Saudi Joint Stock

Company) (continued)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key andit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Provisions for outstanding claims

The provision for outstanding claims includes the
balances related to reported but not settled claims,
incurred but not reported claims and other reserves.
The process of determining the provision for
outstanding claims and its related cost arising from
insurance

contracts is inherently complex,
requiring judgement and actuarial expertise.
Accordingly, this complexity arises from

calculating the actuarial best estimate and the
margin over best estimate using historical data
which is sensitive to external inputs, such as claims
cost inflation and medical trends, as well as the
actuarial methodology that is applied and the
assumplions on current and future events.

The Company calculates its own estimate of the
provision  using  standardised  reserving
methodology for comparing against the provision
calculated by the indcpendent actvary, and
considers the impact of any significant differences.

Due to the estimation uncertainty and subjectivity
involved in the assessment of provisions for
outstanding claims, we have considered this as a
key audit matter.

Please refer to notes 3(xx) for the accounting policy
adopted by the Company and note 2d(i) for the
significant accounting judgements, estimates and
assumptions involved in the initial recognition and
subsequent measurement of elaims. Also, refer note
13 for movement in outstanding claims.

Our audit procedures included the following:

e We inspecled the claims reserving reports and

evaluated the design and implementation of key
controls over the provisioning process, including
controls over completeness and accuracy of the data
used for the provisions calculations. This data
provides evidence over trends for outstanding claims
and its related costs at the reporting date and drives
the assumptions for claims in current and preceding
financial years. These assumptions include historical
claims experience, claims cost inflation and medical
trends.

We engaged our own actuarial specialists to evaluate
and review the assumptions on current and future
events used by the Company, as set out in the claims
reserving reports, as well as comparing them to
expectations based on the Company’s historical
experience, current trends and analysis. We have also
reviewed the actuarial reserve report issued by the
independent actnary.

We evaluated the appropriateness of sensitivitics
applied by the management towards assumptions
affecting the adequacy of outstanding claims at the
vear end.

We also assessed the adequacy of the financial
statements disclosures with respect to outstanding
claims.
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Independent Anditors’ Report

To the Shareholders of Bupa Arabia for Cooperative Insurance Company (A Saudi Joint Stock
Company) (continued)

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information, Other information comprises the information included
in the Company’s 2018 annual report but does not include financial statements and our auditors’ report
thereon. The annual report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditors® report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not and will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the other information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of the Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with IFRSs as modified by SAMA for the accounting of zakal and income tax, the applicable requirements of
the Companies’ Law, the Company’s By-laws and for such internal control as management determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management cither intend to liquidate the Company or to cease opcrations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so,

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and fo issue an auditors’ report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs as endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Intemational Standards on Auditing as endorsed in the Kingdom of
Saudi Arabia, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

*  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive 1o those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The tisk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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Independent Auditors® Report

To the Shareholders of Bupa Arabia for Cooperative Insurance Company (A Saudi Joint Stock
Company) {continued)

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
arc appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Company’s internal control.

*  Evalvate the appropriatencss of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures madc by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s usc of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty cxists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors® report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of cur auditors’ report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial staternents, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statcment that we have complied with relevant cihical
requitements regarding independence, and to communicatc with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicablc, rclated safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

for KPMG Al Fozan & Pariners for Ernst & Young & Ca.
Certificd Public Accountants (Certified Public Account

Ebrahim Oboud Baeshen A
Certified Public Accountant Certified Public Accouniant
Licence No., 382 Licence No. 356
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BUPA ARABIA FOR COOPERATIVE IN SURANCE COMPANY

(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 Decemboer 2018

2018 2017
Notes SR'606 SR'00

ASSFTS
Cash and cash equivalents 5 290,413 229,884
Premiums receivable — net 6 950,671 870,982
Reinsurers’ share of uncamed premiums 13.2 6,320 5,146
Reinsurers’ share of outstanding claims I3.1 336 360
Reinsurers’ share of claims incurred but not reporied 13.1 2,678 670
Deferred policy acquisition costs 4 118,323 71,076
Invesiments 7 1,621,491 1,721,680
Prepaid expenses and other assets 8 202,985 170,528
Term deposits 9 4,715,281 3,945,383
Fixtures, furniture and equipment — net 10 81,243 93,617
Intangible assets — net 11 57273 39,880
Goodwill 4 98,000 28,000
Statutory deposit 12 120,800 20,000
Accrued income on statutory deposit 12 6,882 5,121
TOTAL ASSETS 8,271,896 7,332,337
Accrued and other liabilities 13 285,809 145,598
Insurance operstions® sweplus payable 20 139,758 138,581
Reinsurers' balances payable 25 50,636 39,613
Uneamed premiums 132 3,428,131 3,051,079
OQutstanding claims 13.1 555,158 450,249
Claims incurred but not reported 13.1 898,123 871,998
Claims handling reserve 13.1 19,400 19,289
Due to related parties 24 41,095 33,586
Provision for end-of-setvice benefits 21 81,395 66,469
Provision for zakat and itcome tax 26 199,784 148,704
Accrued incoine payable to SAMA 12 4,882 5121
TOTAL LIABILITIES 5,706,168 5,010,287

EQUITY
Share capital 27 1,200,008 800,600
Statutory reserve 28 602,111 504,025
Share based-payments 29 17,579 17,220
Shares held under employees share scheme 9 (32,662) (28,915)
Retained carnings 811,153 1,030,887
Re-measurement reserve of defined benefit obligation 21 (8,922) -
Investments fair value reserve — related 1o shareholderg {21,942) {1,880}
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY 2,574,317 2,321,337
Investments fair value reserve — related to policyholders {5,589) 713
TOTAL EQUTTY 2,568,728 2,322,050
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 8,271,896 7,332,337

Chaimman Biréctor and Chief Executive Officer

The accompanying notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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BUPA ARABIA FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

STATEMENT OF INCOME
For the year ended 31 December 2018

REVENUES

Gross premiums written

Reinsurance premiums ceded — Local

Reinsurance premiums ceded — Internationat

Net premiums written

Changes in uneamed premiums

Changes in reinsurance share of uncarned premiums
Net premiums earned

R G CO EX SES

Gross claims paid
Reinsurers’ share of claims paid
Net clainos paid
Changes in cutstanding claims
Changes in claims incutred but not reported
Changes in claims handling reserves
Reinsurance share of changes in outstanding ¢laims
Reinsurance share of changes in claims incurred but not reported
Net claims fncurred
Policy acquisition costs

TA], UNDE G COSTS & EN

NET UNDERWRITING RESULTS

THER OPERATING (EXPENSE, co
Allowance for doubtful receivables
General and administrative expenses
Selling and marketing expenses
Investment income, net
Other income/(loss), net

T. PERATING (EXPE CO

NET INCOME FOR THE YEAR
Net Income attributed to insurance eperations
Net income attributed to sharehokders

Weighted average number of ordinary outstanding shares (in
thonsands)

Basic earnings per share (Expressed io SR per Share)

Chairman

The accoimpanying notes 1 10 39 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Notes

13.2

13.2

31
32
33

35

2018 2017
SR*060 SR'000
8,566,648 7,732,961
9,838) (5,592)
(70,690) (62,756)
8,486,120 7,664,613
(337,052) 3911
1,174 3,790
8,150,242 7,672,314
(6,708,524) (6,428,617
48,700 44218
(5,659,824) (6,384,399)
(184,909) {112,700)
(26,125) 92,786
(111)

24) (242)

2,008 (448)
(6,788,985) (6,405,003)
(197,371) (182,066)
(6,986,356) (6,587,069)
1,163,886 1,085,245
(32,256) (3,718)
(433,686) (380,127
(322,004) (308,226)
184,150 158,241
14,068 {409)
{589,728) {534,239)
574,158 551,006
(48,727) (50,392)
525,431 500,614
119,614 119,674
4.39 418

irector and Chief Executive Officer
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ARABIA FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY )

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the ycar ended 31 December 2018

2018 2817
SR008 SR'600
Net income attributed to the shareholders 525,431 500,614
Other comprehensive income
Items that wilf not be reclassified to statement of income in subseguent years
Actuarinl logses on defined benefit obligation (8,922) -
Trems that are or may be reclussified to statement of income in sibsegient pears
Net movement in fair value of available-for-sale investments:
related to shareholders {20,062) (1,880}
- related to policyholders (9,302) 713
(29,364) {1,167)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 487,145 499,447

irector and Chief Executive Qfficer

;‘m’n@

Chief Financial Officer

The accompanying notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these financial stalements.
7



130 SARNODNT JOT) pue

—Hinn

[

"USIEIS J81ouBLY 353l Jo ed Mot ue g 01 | WOY S10U FUIATSAMOd08 B

e

1UED]] Jo1L)

weLUregD

“8ULS95T  (6ESH) LICFST D) @T6%) §SUIS  W99Ce)  6LTIT TG00 00000TT
01 - 0Zr% - - 0Tr's = - - -
{6sl'se) - {561°68) = - G61°68) - - - -
(000‘00Y) =~ Woo‘e) - - oo'so1) -~ - - -

- - - - - Ooc'oar) - - - 000°00F
rer'ry) - ey 1D - - - {r6t1D) = - i
- - - - - - LbLL @iy - -
o'y - 2018 - - e - 9I'g - -
~ - - - - (sg0's01) - - 98001 -
SPI'L8r  (Zec's) LFP 968 (Z90°07) (126'8) ISr'sIs - - - -
¥IE'6T) (7acts) 790%07) ({T99°07) - - - - - -

(zTe'e) - (Z26'9) - (Tz6'®) - - - - -
ISKSTs - ISr'szs - - I€H'578 - - - -
050°77€°T  €1L LEETTET (0se°1) - Leg'0c0’t  (SI6'BD) 0TTLL SW'PeS 000008
000.38  00.NS 200.45 000.4S 90048 o0 HS 000.4S 009. S 00 XS 006.HS
dignba saapjoglaiod  aznba 20s532 wopwSiyge s8upusn YIS Snpwidnd 2442831 opdva
o 0} payvias (SOPOYRIDYS  duppannf  pusqpauyfp  poupiy  suvys -posoq Lopyee  2ivys

- Duasad ey QUFRSIAUT  JO andasas saadophur  aamyg

ampa ywf NI INETRUIY L3pun

SIUPRISIAUT BI2y s2ivyg

Slapjoyadrys o3 partiay

S1DT FqURR( [ ju oue[eg

SIap[OqaIBys

FTES-UOU WIBYY PAZaAGS3] N¥) S0 ]
IE1eT Xe) AT pue TEYB7

(¢ an0u) pred spaspiaig

(LT =40u} sareys snuoq Jo enss|

dL17T Jopun s3.e7s Jo aseyong

JLLT Japun samys jo L1sarpsg
SUONRSURY JUetnAed paseq amyg
s2AIR5R ALCINIKS ) JgJSueL]

I¥4 31p) 10§ SUIOIUY FAKUIY2d LD [J0
S s34 T SfRs-10)-2]qe[iese

Jo anfea nej up sefueyn
wonEdiqo

133Udq paulap Uo 5550 [BLRmoY
Siapjoyaeys

01 pAINGLIE JeaA 81} 10} Swoour JaN

4624 aq) Jo} awodw aarsuagarduwod feyo

S10Z L1enuep | 3¢ ursg

102

$T0T Joquasa(] [ papus sead oxpy Jog

ALINOT NI SIONVHD 0 INFNIIVIS

{ANVIWO0D JD0I1S INIOL IANYS V)
ANVIWOD FONVINSNI HALLV 44000 MO VISVEY VdNd



ASSIO Saynoaxy J9MD pHR-T0RoRq

0S0'ZZE'T £IL LEE2ET (038'1) [3370£0TT  (S16'30) 0CC L1 SZ0v0S 000003
{(62Z'6L) - (6TT°6L) - {6TT6L) - - -- -
{0o0'oz1) - ®og'ozI) - (oo0‘0z1) - - - -
(650°11) - (650°T1) - - (650°11) - - -
- - - - - BbS°S (245') - -
LEg'S - 188°¢ - - - LER'S - -
- - - - (ezr'oor) - - EEI00T -
LPY'66¥ £1L bEL'S6% (083°1) 719°00§ - - - -
{to171) €1l (o8 {028°D) - - - - -
¥1900s - 19008 - P19°005 - - - -
ve0'Lze' - oLzo'z - $T9'6T8 (bO¥'eD)  1e6'0 06'E0F 000008
00048 20045 00048 000,48 900,88 000, 4S8 000 XS 300:35 006,48
Mynba oy sipjoydogod  Gruba FAPEL- T s3upstins 2U3YIS spizadod  aaszsac  pyded

o) pasofad (SIEPlOWdIVYS  mpps dinf  paupptay  auvys =pasvg diopmrly  2avyg

— FLP5Dd maol SiremupsoANy saadopdwe  sapyg

anpon anf S

Spustiygsaay P12y S0y

SOPI0Y2483S 0 parpEa Y

L1I0T PqUId3aQ | ¢ I8 Pakjeg

a3reys xep swosu) pue yeez

{ve 10u) pred spoopiaig

dL1T Iopm sas=ys yo aseqoing
dILT 43pun sazys 3o Alan[aQ
suchoesuen juswiAed paseq sreys

§9A12801 30JngeI= ©) 13jsuna |

1534 ayg) 40y WO SAKUIRIdWOD [1Y0 |
SJUSURSDAUT S[es-10J-]qe[IBAL
40 snjea Ly uy soSvey)
SIployaleys
O} PIINGLYE JEDA ) 10J HLIOIUT JON]
A¥aL 3y Joj MO FAISUIGAIAMIOS [w)o ],

LYOT AdBRUET [ 18 2duUe|Eg

[ { T4

2107 19que0a(] £ papua Teak ap Jog

(psaunuos) LLINDT NI SIONVHD 40 INTNAI VLS

(ANVINOD MD0LS INIO! IGNVS V)

ANVANOD HONVANSNI JALLVIAdOO0) M0d VIavIV vdd



BUPA ARABIA FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 December 2018

2018 2017
Notes SR'G00 SR’000
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income atiributed lokthe sharsholders 52543 500,614
1 Ron-cdsh {ems:
Net income attributed to the insurance operations 20 48,727 50,392
Depreciation of fixtures, furniture and equipment 13,499 1,078
Amporization of intangible assets 8,072 5,149
Share bascd-payments expense 8,106 5,837
Allowance for doubtful receivables 32,256 3,718
Unrealized gains on investments held as FVSI (6,266} {12,2%6)
Realized gains on investments (10,202) {11,816)
Provision for end-of-service benefits 16,226 12,673
Loss on disposal of fixture, famiture and equipment 272 433
Premiums recefvable (111,945) 105,843
Reinsurers’ share of unearned premiums (1,174) (3,790
Reinsuress’ share of outstanding claims 24 242
Reinsurers’ share of claims Incurred but not reported (2,008) 443
Deferred policy acquisition costs @7,247) 1,205
Prepaid expenses and other assets (32437 (21,537
Accrued and other lisbilities 149,211 (28,51%)
Reinsurers’ balances payable 11,023 24,496
Unearned premiums 337,052 {3,911)
Ouistanding claims 104,909 112,700
Clairns incurred but not reported 26,125 (92,786)
Claims handling reserve 111 -
Diue to relzted parties 7.509 9,242
1,067,554 670,016
End-of-service benefits paid (10,222) {5,520)
Surplus paid to policyholders 20 {47,553) (R1,695)
Zekat and income tax paid {38,119 (47.478)
Net cash generated from operatin £ activities 971,660 535,323
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Placement in term deposits 9 (5,324,758) (3,945,383)
Proceeds from maturity of term deposits 9 4,554,860 4,045,310
Additions to investments 7 (1.828,024) (2,421,572)
Disposals of investmenis 1,916,027 1,981,247
Additions to fixtures, furniture and equipment (5,820) {31,557
Proceeds from disposal of fixture, farniture and equipment 7 3
Intangible assets acquired ; (21,049) (28,263)
Increase in statutory deposit {40,000 -
Purchase of shares under LTIP - yet (11,454) (11,059)
Net cash used in investing activities (760.251) (411,26
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid 34 (160,000) (120,000)
Income tax recovered from non-Saudi shareholdess 2,120 -
Net cash used in financing activities (150,880) (120,000}
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 60,529 4,054
Cash and cash equivelents at beginning of the year 229,884 225,830
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 299,413 229,884
No h acti
Unrealised logses on available for sale investments (29,364) (1,167)
Zakat and income tax debited to retained earnings 89,199 79,229
Actuaria] loss on defined benefit obligation (8.923) -
Transfer of fixtures, furniture and equipment to intangible assets 4,416 2
Chairman AT A Director and Chief Executive Oficer
U ERO(T 4
“"hief Financial Off "

The accompanyiag notes from 1 to 39 an integral part of these financial statements.
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BUPA ARABIA FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2018

1. ORGANIZATION AND PRINCIPLE ACTIVITIES

Bupa Arabia for Cooperative Insurance Company (the “Company™) is a Saudi Joint Stock Company incorporated
in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia as per the Ministry of Commerce and Investment’s Resolution number 138/K
dated 24 Rabi Thani 1429H (corresponding to I May 2008). The Commercial Registration number of the Company
is 4030178881 dated $ Jumad Awwal 1429H (corresponding to 11 May 2008). The Registered Office of the
Company is sitnated at;

Al-Khalediyah District,

Prince Saud Al Faisal Street,

Front of Saudi Airlines Cargo Building,
P.O. Box 23807, Jeddah 21436,
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia,

The Company is licensed to conduct insurance business in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia under cooperative
principles in accordance with Royal Decree No, M/74 dated 29 Shabaan 1428H (corresponding to 11 September
2007) pursuant to the Council of Ministers® Resolution No 279 dated 28 Shabaan 1428H (corresponding to 10
September 2007).

The objective of the Company is to transact cooperative insurance opetations and related activities in the Kingdom
of Saudi Arabia in accordance with its articles of association, and applicable regulations in the Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia. The Company underwrites medical insurance only.

The Board of Directors approves the distribution of the surplus from insurance operations in accordance with the
Implementing Regulations issued by the Saudi Arabian Monetary Authority (“SAMA™), whereby the shareholders
of the Company are to receive 90% of the annual surplus from insurance operations and the policyholders are io
teceive the remaining 10%. Any deficit arising on insurance operations is transferred to the shareholders®
operations in full,

A BASIS OF PREFARATION
(a) Basis of presentation and measurement

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) as modified by SAMA for the accounting of zakat and income tax, which requites, adoption of all IFRSs
as issued by the Intemmational Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) except for the application of International
Accounting Standard (IAS}) 12 - “Income Taxes™ and IFRIC 21 - “Levies” so far as these relate to zakat and income
tax. As per the SAMA Circular no. 381000074519 dated April 11, 2017 and subsequent amendments through
certain clarifications relating to the accounting for zakal and income tax (“SAMA Circular’), the zakat and income
tax are to be accrued on a quarterly basis through equity under retained earnings.

The financial statements are prepared under the going concern basis and the historical cost convention, except for
the measurement at fair value of investments held at fair value through statement of income (FVSI), available for
sale investments and measurement reserve of defined benefit obligation. The Company’s statement of fimancial
position is not presented using a current/non-current classification. However. the following balances would
generally be classified as non-current: available-for-sale investments, fixtures, furniture and equipment, intangible
asscts, goodwill, statutory deposit, accrued income on statutory deposit, provision for end-of-service benefits and
acerued income payable to SAMA. All other financial statement line items would generally be classified as cumrent
unless, stated otherwise.

As required by the Saudi Arabian Insurance Regulations “the Implementation Regulations”, the Company
maintains separate books of accounts for “Insurance Operations™ and “Shareholders’ Operations™. Accordingly,
assets, Habilities, revenues and expenses attributable to either operation are recorded in the respective accounts,
The Company’s financial statements until 31 December 2017, presented separately the statement of financial
position, statements of income, comprehensive income and cash flows of insurance and shareholders’ operations,
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BUPA ARABIA FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
At 31 December 2018

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
(a) Basis of presentation and measurement (continued)

During the current year, SAMA issued ilfustrative financial statements for the insurance sector in the Kingdom of
Saudi Arabia. In preparing the Company level financial statements in compliance with IFRS as modified by
SAMA, the balances and transactions of insurance operations are combined with those of shareholders’ operations.
Inter-operation balances and transactions, if any, are eliminated in full. The accounting policies adopted for the
insurance and shareholders’ operations are uniform for like transactions and events in similar circumstances.

In preparing these financial statemenis comparative amounts are also combined to conform to the current year
presentation in line with SAMA requirements, which has no impact on the previously reported net profil and
rctained earnings. However, note 37 to these financial statements provides the statement of financial position,
statements of income, comprehensive income and cash flows of insurance and shareholders operations, separately.

(b) Functional and presentation eurrency

These financial statements are presented in Saudi Arabian Riyals (SR), which is the Company’s functional
currency. All financial information presented in SR has been rounded off to the nearest thousand except where
otherwise indicated.

{c) Fiscal year
The Company follows a fiscal year ending on 31 December,
{d) Critical accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumpticns that affect the reported amount of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying
disclosures. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future years. Estimates and judgments are
continually evaluated and based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The following are the accounting judgments and
estimates that are critical in the preparation of these financial statemens:

i The ultimate liability arising from claims made under insurance contracis

Judgment by management is required in the estimation of amounts due to medical providers and third parties arising
from claims made under insurance contracts. Such estimates are necessarily based on assumptions about several
factors involving varying degrees of judgment and uncertainty and actual results may differ from management’s
estimates resulting in future changes in estimated liabilities. The Company estimates its claims based on its previous
experience of its insurance portfolio. The provision for claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) is an estimation of
claims which are expected to be reported subsequent to the date of statement of financial position, for which the
insured event has occurred prior to the date of statement of financial position. The primary technique adopted by
management in estimating the cost of notified and IBNR claims, is that of using the past claims settlement trends
1o predict future claims setilement irends, Claims requiring court or arbimation decisions, if any, are estimated
individually. Management reviews its provisions for claims incurred, and claims incurred but not reported, on a
monthly basis. Any difference between the provisions at the statement of financial position date and settlements
and provisions in the following year is included in the statement of income for that year. The provision for
outstanding claims, as at 31 December, is also verified by an independent actuary.

A range of methods such as the Chain Ladder Method, the Bornhuetter-Ferguson Method and the Expected Loss
Ratio Method are used by the actuaries to determine these provisions, Also the Actuaries have uged a segmentation
approach which includes analyzing the costs per member per vear for the medical line of business. Underlying these
methods are also a number of explicit or implicit assumptions relating 1o the expected settlement amount and the
seltlement patterns of the claims.
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BUPA ARABIA FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Al 31 December 201§

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
(d) Critical accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions (continued)
i) The ultimate liability arising from claims madc under insurance contracts (continued)

Estimation of premium deficiency for medical insurance is highly sensitive to a number of assumptions as to the
future events and conditions. It is based on an expected loss ratio for the unexpired portion of the risks for written
policies. To arrive at the estimate of the expected loss ratio, the company’s actuarial team, and also the independent
actuary, consider the claims and premiums relationship which is expected to apply on month to month basis, and
ascertain, at the end of the financial period, whether a premium deficiency reserve is required.

ii) Impairment of receivables

A provision for impairment of receivables and reinsurance receivables is established when there is objective
evidence that the Company will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of the
receivables, Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or
financial reorganization, and default or delinquency in payments are considered indicators that the receivable is
impaired,

iif}) Deferred acquisition costs

Certain acquisition costs related to the sale of new policies are recorded as deferred acquisition costs and are
amortised in the statement of income over the period of policy coverage. If the assumptions relating to future
profitability of these policies are not realised, the amortisation of these costs could be accelerated and this may
also require additional impairment write-offs in the statement of income.

iv) Useful lives of fixtures, furniture and equipment

The Company's managcment determines the estimated useful lives of its fixtures, furniture and equipment for
calculating depreciation. These estimates are determined after considering the expected usage of the assets or
physical wear and tear. Management reviews residual values and useful lives annually and future depreciation
charges are adjusted where management believes the useful lives differ from previous estimates.

v} Fair value of financial instraments

The fair value for financial instruments traded in active markets at the reporting date is based on their quoted market
price, Where the fair values of financial assets and financial labilities recorded on the statement of financial position
cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined using a variety of valuation techniques that include the
use of mathematical models. The inputs te these models are derived [rom observable market data where possible,
but if this is not available, judgment is required to establish fair values.

vi) Impairment of available-for-sale investments

The Company exercises judgrnent to consider impairment on the available for sale investments at each reporting
date. This inchides determination of a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of equity securities below
cost. The determination of what is 'significant’ or ‘prolonged' requires judgment. In making this judgment, the
Company evaluates among other factors, the normal volatility in share prices. In addition, the Company considers
impairment to be appropriate when there is evidence of deterioration in the financial health of the investee, industry
and sector performance, changes in technology, and operational & financing cash flows,

The Company considers 30% or more, as a reasonable measure for significant decline below its cost, irrespective
of the duration of the decline, which is recognized in the statement of income as impairment charge on investments.
Prolonged decline represents a decline below cost that persists for 1 year or longer irrespective of the amount and
15 recognised in the statement of income accordingly as an impairment charge on investments. The previously
recognized impairment loss in respect of equity investments cannot be reversed through the statement of income.
The Company reviews its debt securities classified as available for sale at each reporiing date to assess whether they
are impaired.
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BUPA ARABIA FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

{A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
At 31 December 2018

2, BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
(d) Critical acconnting judgiments, estimates and assumptions {continued)
vii) Going comcern

The Company’s management has made an assessment of its ability to continue as a going concern and is satisfied
that it has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. Furthermore, management is 101 aware
of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concem. Therefore, the financial statements continue (o be prepared on the going concemn basis.

viii) Impairment of Goodwill

Goodwill is initially measured at cost being the excess of the net fair value of the identifiable asseis and liabilities
acquired. Following initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill is reviewed for impairment, annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value may be impaired. Impairment for goodwill is determined by asseseing the recoverable amount
of the cash generating unit (or a group of cash generating units) to which the goodwill is related. When the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (or a group of cash generating units) is less than the cartving amount
of the cash generating unit (or a group of cash generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated, an impairment
loss is recognised. Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods. The recoverable
amount is the greater of its valuc in use or fair value less cost to sell. In assessing the value in use, the estimated
foture cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to the asset.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are summarised below.

These policies have been consistently applied to each of the years presented except for adoption of the amendments
to existing standards and IFRS 135 as discussed below:

a) New IFRS Standards, IFRIC interpretations and umendmenty theveof, adopted by the Company
The following mew standards, amendments and revisions to existing standards, which were issued by the

International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) have been effective from | January 2018 and accordingly
adopted by the Company, as applicable:

Standard / Amendments Description

IFRS 2 Amendments to IFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of share-based
Payment transactions,

IAS 40 Amendments o LAS 40 Transfers of investment property

JFRIC 22 Foreign Cumrency Transactions and Advance consideration

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (refer below)

IFRS 1 and IAS 28 Annual Improvements 2016 to IFRS 2014~ 2016 cycle.

The adoption of the amended standards and interpretations applicable to the Company did not have any significant
impact on these financial statements,

IFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 135 outlines a single comprehensive model of accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers
and supersedes curremt revenue guidance, which is found currently across several Standards and Interpretations
within the IFRS. IFRS 15 does not apply to “revenue from insurance contracts™. However, entities will need to
apply IFRS 15 (o non-insurance contracts (or components of insurance contracts).

The Company’s management has assessed and concluded that there is no material impact on the amounts reported
at transition to IFRS 15 on 1 January 2018,
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BUPA ARABIA FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

{A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
At 31 December 2018

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
h) Standards issued but not yet effective

The following are the standards issued but not vet effective up to the date of issuance of the Company’s financial
statements. The Company intends to adopt these standards when they become effective.

IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (inchsding amendments to IFRS 4, Insurance Contracts)

In July 2014, the IASB published IFRS 9 Financial Instruments which replaced IAS 39 Finencial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement. The standard incorporaies new classification and measurement requirements for
financial assets, introduces an expected credit loss (ECL) impairment model which replaces the incurred loss model
of IAS 39, and new hedge accounting requirements under IFRS 9:

e  All financial assets will be measured at either amortised cost or fair value. The basis of classification will
depend on the business model and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. The standard
retains most of [AS 39’s requirements for financial liabilities except for those designated at fair value through
statement of income whereby that part of the fair value changes attributable to own credit is to be recognised
in other comprehensive income instead of the statement of income;

e JFRS 9 requires entities to record an allowance for ECLs for all loans and other debt financial assets not held
at fair value through statement of income as well as finance lease receivables, together with loan commitments
and financial guarantee contracts. The allowance is based on the ECLs associated with the probability of default
in the next twelve months unless there has been a significant increase in eredit risk since origination. Under
IFRS 9, credit losses are recognised earlier than under IAS 39;

¢ The hedge accounting requirements are more closely aligned with risk management practices and follow a more
principle-based approach.

In September 2016, the IASB published amendments to IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts that address the accounting
consequences of the application of IFRS 9 to insurers prior to the publication of the forthcoming accounting standard
for insurance contracts. The amendments introduce two options for insurers: the defetral approach and the overlay
approach. The deferral approach provides an entity, if eligible, with a temporary exemption from applying IFRS 9
until the earlier of the effective date of a new insurance contract standard or 2022. The overlay approach allows an
entity to remove from profit or loss the effects of some of the accounting mismatches that may occur before the new
insurance contracts standard is applied.

Under the temporary exemption as introduced by amendments to IFRS 4, the reporting entities whose activities
predominantly relate to “insurance” can defer the implementation of IFRS 9, The Company has assessed the
implications and has concluded to defer the implementation of [IFRS 9 until a later date which will not be later than
1 January 2022.

The impact of [FRS 9 adoption the Company’s financial statements will, to a large extent, have to take into account
the interaction with the forthcoming insurance contracts standard, As such, it is not possible to fully assess the effect
of the adoption of the IFRS 9 adoption.

IFRS 17 - “Insurance Contracts”, applicable for the period beginning on or after 1 January 2022, and will supersede
IFRS 4 “Insurance Contracts”, Earlier adoption permitted if both [FRS 15 Revenue from Coniracts with Customers'
and IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' have also been applied. The Company is now assessing the impact on
measurement and disclosure of insurance and reinsurance that will affect both the statement of income and the
statement of financial position. The Company has decided not to early adopt this new standard.

IFRS 16 - “Leases”, applicable for the period beginning on or after 1 January 2019. The new standard eliminates
the current dual accounting model for lessees under JAS 17, which distinguishes between on-balance sheet finance
leases and off-balance sheet operating leases. Instead, IFRS 16 proposes on-balance sheet accounting model. The
Company has decided not to early adopt this new standard.

The Company is currently in the phase of assessing the impact of the above standards.
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BUPA ARABIA FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
At 31 December 2018

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The significant accounting policies used in preparing these financial statements are set out below:
i) Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement
Financial instruments comprise financial assets and financial liabilities.

Financial assets consist of cash and cash equivalents, premiums receivable, reinsurance share of outstanding
claims, reinsurance share of incurred but not reported claims, investments, term deposits, statutory deposit and
other receivables. Financial liabilities consist of insurance operations surplus payable, reinsurance balances
payable, outstanding claims, claims incurred but not reported, <laims handling reserve, amounts due to related
parties, provision for end-of-service benefits, zakat and income tax and certain other liahilities.

Date of recognition

Regular way sale and purchase of financial instruments is recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the
Company becemes a party to the contractal provisions of the instrament. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial instruments that require settlement of instrument within the time frame generally
established by regulation or convention in the market place.

Measurement of financial instruments

All financial instroments are measured initially at their fair value plus, in the case of financial assets and financial
liabilities not at fair value through statement of income, any directly atiributable incremental costs of acquisition
or issue. The classification of financial instruments at initial recognition depends on the purpose for which the
financial instruments were acquired and their characteristics. Subsequent fo initial measurement, financial
instruments are carried at amortised cost except for FVSI and AFS investments which are carried at fair value.

i} Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of bank balances and term deposits that have original maturity periods not
exceeding three months from the date of acquisition,

iii) Premiums receivable

Premiums receivable are stated at gross written premiums receivable from insurance contracts, less an allowance
for any uncollectible amounts. An allowance for uncollectible amount is established when there is objective
evidence that the Company will not be able to collect all amounts due according to their original terms. Bad debts
are written off as incurred. Subsequent recoverics of amounts previously written off are credited in the statement
of income,

iv) Policy acquisition costs

Commission to sales staff and incremental direct costs incurred in relation to the acquisition and renewal of
inswrance contracis are deferred. The deferred acquisition costs are subsequently amortised over the terms of the
insurance contracl as premiums are earned and reported in the statement of income. Changes in the expected useful
life or the expected pattem of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are accounted for by
changing the amortization period and are treated as a change in accounting estimate. If the assumptions relating to
future profitability of these policies are not realised, the amortization of these costs could be accelerated and this
may also require additional impairment write-offs in the statement of income. Deferred policy acquisition costs
are also considered in the liability adequacy test for each reporting year.

v) Investments

{a) Financial assets at fair valve through statement of income

Investments are classified as at fair valve through statemnent of income if they are classified as held-for-trading or
are designated as such on initial recognition. Directly attributable transaction costs are recognised in the statement
of tncome as incurred. Subsequently, such investments are re-measured at fair value, with all changes in fair value
being recorded in the statement of income.
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BUPA ARABIA FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

(A SAUDIJOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
At 31 December 2018

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

iv) Investments (continmed)

b) Available for sale investments

Available for sale investments are non-derivative investments that are designated as available for sale or not
classified as another category of financial assets, and are intended to be held for an unspecified period of time,
which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes in special commission rates, exchange rates or
equity prices.

Investments which are classified as available for sale are initially recognised at fair value including direct and
incremental transaction costs and subsequently measured at fair value except for unguoted equity securities where
fair value cannot be reliably measured are carried at cost. Any unrealised gains or losses arising from changes in
fair value are recognized through the statement of comprehensive income until the investments are derecognized or
impaired whereupon any cumulative gains or losses previously recognized in equity are reclassified 10 statement of
income for the period and arc disclosed as gains/(losses) on non-trading investments.

v} Term deposits

Term deposits, with original matority of more than threc months, are initially recognized in the statement of financial
position at fair value and are subsequently measured at amertised cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment in value,

vi) Fixtures, furniture and equipment

Furniture, frixtures and equipment are initially recorded in the statement of financial position at cost less accumulated

depreciation and any impairment in value. Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis over the estimated
useful lives of the assets. The estimated useful lives of the assets for the calcnlation of depreciation are as follows:

Years
Leaschold Improvements {civil, construction work and fixures) I5 years or lease tert
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 51020
Computer 25t07
Motor vehicles 4

Residual values, useful lives and the mcthods of depreciation are reviewed and adjusted as appropriate at each
financial year end. Impairment reviews take place when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may not be recoverable. The depreciation charge for the year is recognised in the statement of income
on an actual basis. Similarly, impairment losses, if any, are recognised in the statement of income.

Expenditure for repairs and maintenance is charged to the statement of income. Subsequent expenditure is
capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the
Company. Gain / loss on sale of fixtures, furniture and equipment is included in statement of income.

vil) Intangible assets

Separately acquired intangible assets (softwares) are shown at historical cost. They have a finite useful life and are
subsequently carried at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses. The Company amortises
intangible assets with a limited vseful life using straight-line method over the following periods:

Years

IT development and software 307
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BUPA ARABIA FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
At 31 December 2018

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

viii) Goodwill

Goodwill is initially measured at excess of the fair value of the consideration paid over the fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities acquired. Following initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses, Goodwill is reviewed for impairment, annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. Impairment for goodwill is determined
by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit (or a group of cash generating units) to which the
goodwill is related. When the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit {or a group of cash generating units)
is less than the carrying amount of the cash generating unit (or a group of cash gencrating units) to which goodwill
has been allocated, an impairment loss is recognised in the statement of income. Impairment losses rclating to
goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods.

ix) Liability adequacy test

At each reporting date the Company assesses annually whether its recognised insurance liabilities are adequate
using current estimates of future cash flows under its insurance contracts. If that assessment shows that the carrying
amount of its insurance liabilities is inadequate in the light of estimated future cash flows, the entire deficiency is
immediately recognised in the statement of income and an unexpired risk provision is created.

x) Accounts payable and accruals

Liabilities are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future for goods or services received, whether billed by the
supplier or not.

xi) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made of the obligation amount,

xii) Employee-end-of-service benefits

Accruals are made at the present value of expecied future payments in respect of services provided by the employees
up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. Consideration is given to the expected
futre wages and salary levels, experience of employee departures and periods of service. Expected future payments
are discounted using market yields at the end of the reporting period of high-quality corporate bonds with terms and
curtencies that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows. The benefit payments obligation
is discharged as it falls due. Re-measurement (actuarial gains/ losses) as a result of experience adjustments and
changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income,

xiii) Sharc based payment

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured by reference to the fair value at the date on
which they are granted. Grant date is date at which the entity and an employee agree to a share-based payment
arrangement, being when the entity and the counterparty have a shared understanding of the terms and conditions
of the arrangement. The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in
equity as a reserve for a share based payment, over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled, ending on the date on which the relevant employees become fully entitled to the award (‘the vesting
date’). The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting
date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Company's best estimate of the number of
equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The statement of income charge or credit for a period represents the
movement in curnulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

In cases where an award is forfeited (i.e. when the vesting conditions relating to an award are not satisfied), the
Company reverses the expense relating to such awards previously recognized in the statement of income.

Whete an equily-settled award is cancelled (other than forfeiture), it is treated as if it vested on the date of
cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
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BUPA ARABIA FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
At 31 December 2018

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continucd)

xiv) Shares held under employee share scheme

The Company purchases shares held under employee share scheme to hedge itself against adverse changes in fair
value of its shares between the grant date and the date on which these shares are transferred to employees. When
shares recognised as equity are repurchased, the amount of the consideration paid, which includes directly
attributable costs, is recognised as a deduction from equity. Repurchased shares are classified as shares held under
employee share scheme and are presented in the statement of changes in equity.

xv) Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses at cach reporting date, whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if,
and only if, there is an objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that have occwrred after
the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred loss event) and that loss event {or events) has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. If
such evidence exists, an impairment loss is recognised in the statement of income. Evidence of impairment may
include indications that the debiors or a group of debtors is experiencing a significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in repayments, the probability that they will enter bankraptcy or other financial reorganisation and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes
in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults. Impairment is determined as follows:

(a) For assets carried at cost, impairment is the difference between carrying value and the present value of
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset; and
(b) For assets carried at amortised cost, impairment is the difference between the carrying amount and the

present value of future cash flows discounted at the original effective comumission rate.
xvi) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair
value less costs to sell and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
gencrate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to
its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs to sell, recent market transactions are taken into account, if
available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are
cotroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices or other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared
separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast
calculations generally cover a period of three to five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated
and applied to projecl future cash flows afier the fifth year.

Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognised in the statement of income.

For assets, excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date whether there is any indication that
previously recognised impairment Josses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the
Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if
there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last
impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its
recoverable amount nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determiined, net of depreciation, had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior vears. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of income.
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BUPA ARABIA FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

(A SAUDIJOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
At 31 December 2018

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
xvii}  De-recognition

Financial asset

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is

derecognised when:

* the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

® the Company has transferred its righis to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay
the received cash flows in full withowt material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and
either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b} the Company
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control
of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a ‘pass-through’
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset,
the asset is recognised to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, the Company
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the
maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Financial lability
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged , cancelled or expired.

xviii} Revenue recognition

Premiums earmed

The Company only issues shott-terin insurance contracts for providing health care services (‘medical insurance’) in
Saudi Arabia. Premiums are taken to income over the terms of the policies to which they relate on a pro-rata basis
based on 365" method. Uncamed premiums represent the portion of premiums written relating to the unexpired period
of coverage. The change in the provision for unecarned premiums is taken to the statement of income.

Investment and commission income
Investment income or loss comprises of unrealised and realised gains and losses on investments. Commission
income on term deposits is recognised using the effective interest method in the statement of income,

*

xix) Reinsurance preminms

Reinsurance premiums ¢eded are recognised as an expense when payable. Reinsurance premivms are charged to
income over the terms of the policies to which they relate on a pro-rata basis.

Xx) Claims

Claims, comprising amounts payable to medical providers and other third parties are charged to income as incurred.
Claims comprise the estimated amounts payable, in respect of claims reported to the Company and those not
reported at each reporting date.

The Company estimates its claims based on previous experience. In addition, a provision based on the
management’s judgment and the Company’s prior experience is maintained for the cost of settling claims incurred
but not reported al each reporting date. Any difference between the provisions at the statement of financial position
date & settlements and provisions for the following year is included in the underwriting account for that year.

The Company does not discount its liability for unpaid claims as substantially all claims are expected to be paid
within one year of the statement of financial position date.
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BUPA ARABRIA FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

{A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAT. STATEMENTS (continued)
AL 31 December 2018

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continucd)

xxi) Insurance coniracts

Insurance contracts are those contracts where the Company (the insurer) has accepted significant insurance risk
from another party (the policyholders) by agreeing to compensate the policyholders if a specified uncertain future
event (the insured event) adversely affects the policyholders. As a general guideline, the Company determines
whether it has significant insurance risk by comparing benefits paid with benefits payable if the msured event did
1Ot oceur.

Once a contract has been classified as an insurance contract, it remains an insurance contract for the remainder of
its lifetime, even if the insurance risk reduces significantly during this period, unless all rights and obligations are
extinguished or expired.,

xxif)  Reinsurance contraets held

In order to minimisc financial exposure from large claims, the Company enters into reinsurance agreements with
internationally reputable reinsurers. Claims receivable from reinsurers are estimated in a manner consistent with the
claim liability and in accordance with the reinsurance contracts. These amounts, if any, are shown as “Reinsurers’
share of outstanding claims™ in the statement of financial position until the claim is agreed and paid by the Company.
Once the claim is paid, the amount due from the reinsurers in connection with the paid claim is transferred to
amounts due from / (to) reinsurers.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication that a reinsurance asset may be
impaired. Where an indicator of impairment exists, the Company makes a formal estimate of recoverable amount.
Where the carrying amount of a reinsurance asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired
and is written down to its recoverable amount.

xxiii) Expenses

Selling and marketing expenses are those which specifically relate to salesmen, sales promotion, advertisements,
rezulatory levies, trade mark fees and fulfillment cosis. All other expenses are classified as general and
administration expenses.

xxiv)  Segment reporting
An operating segment is a component of an entity;

- that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses (including revenues
and expenses relating to transactions with other components of the same cntity); and
whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the entity’s chief operating decision maker to make
decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance; and
for which discrete financial information is available.

XXV) Leases

Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as
operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of income on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

axvi}  Foreign currencies

The accounting records of the Company are maintained in Saudi Riyals. Transactions in foreign currencies are
recorded in Saudi Riyals at the approximate rate of exchange ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets
and liabilities demominated in foreign currencies are retranslaced at the spot rate at the reporting date. All differences
are taken to the statement of income.
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BUPA ARABIA FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (coniinued)
At 3] December 2018

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

xxvii) Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and seitle the liabilities simultaneously. Income and expenses are not
offset in the stalement of income unless required or permitted by any accounting standard or interpretation, as
specifically disclosed in the accounting policies of the Company.
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xxviii) Cash dividend to sharcholders

The Company recognises a liability to make cash distributions to shareholders of the Company when the distribution
is authorised and is no longer at the discretion of the Company. A distribution is authorised when it is approved by
the shareholders and SAMA. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

xxix) Zakat and income tax

Under Saudi Arabian Zakat and Income Tax laws, zakat and income tax are the liabilities of the Saudi and foreign
shareholders, respectively. Zakat is computed on the Saudi shareholders’ share of equity and / or net income using
the basis defined under the zakat regulations. Income tax is computed on the foreign shareholders’ share of net
income for the year. The Company withholds taxes on certain transactions with non-resident parties in the Kingdom
of Saud; Arabia as required under Saudi Arabian Income Tax Law.

Zakat and income tax are charged to retained earnings as these are liabilities of the shareholders. Income tax charged
to retained earnings, in excess to the proportion of the Saudi Shareholders’ zakat per share, is recovered from the
foreign shareholders and credited to retained eamnings.

No adjustments are made in the financial statements to account for the effect of deferred income taxes since zakat
and income tax are the liabilities of the shareholders in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

XXX) Statutory reserve

In accordance with the Company’s by-laws, the Company shall allocate 20% of its net income from sharcholders
operations each year 10 the statutory reserve until it has built up a reserve equal to the share capital. The reserve is
not available for distribution.

4. GOODWILL

On 31 December 2008, the Company entered into an agreement with Bupa Middle East Limited E.C. (the “Seller™),
a related party, pursuant to which it acquired the Seller’s insurance operations in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia,
effective from 1 January 2009, The acquisition transaction was approved by SAM A and resulted in goodwill of SR
98 million. The entire amount was paid in the previcus years, to the Seller, after obtaining the required regulatory
approvals.

In accetdance with the requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards, the Company’s management
annually carry out an annual impairment test in respect of the above mentioned goodwill. Management conducted
the impairment exercise for the vear ended 31 December 2018. The recoverable amount of operations has been
determined based on value in use. The two key assumptions used in the test are the discount rate and estimated
future cash flows from the business as follows:

An average discount rate of 12% was used to discount future cash flows.
EBTIDA growth rate of 11.6% was used for the first three years. Thercafter. a growth rate of 3% was used in
the terminal value caleulation.

* A change in discount rate by 300 basis point with other variables held constant would not result in impairment
of goodwill,
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BUPA ARABIA FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TC THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
At 31 December 2018

5. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents comprisc of the following:

2018
Insurance Shareholders’
operations operations Total
SR'O00
Bank balances 272,527 17,886 290,413
2017
Insurance Shareholders’
operations operations Total
SR 000
Bank balances 110,384 119,500 229,884

The amount payable to/receivable from shareholders’ operations is settled by transfer of cash at each reporting date.
During the year ended 31 December 2018, the insurance operations transferred cash of SR 99 million to
sharcholders’ operations (31 December 2017: SR 420.5 million).

6. PREMIUMS RECEIVABLE - NET

Receivables comprise of amounts due from the following:

2018 2017

SR00D SR 000

Policyholders 755202 732,557

Brokers 364,610 280,873

Related parties (note 24) = 226

' 1,119,902 1,013,656

Provision for doubtful receivables {169,231) (142,674)

Premiums receivable — net 950,671 870,982
Movement in provision for doubtful debts during the vear was as follows:

2018 2017

SR'000 SR’'000

Balance at the beginning of the year 142,674 142,997

Provision made duting the year 32,256 3,718

Utilised during the year (5,699) (4,041)

Balance at end of the year 169,231 142,674
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BUPA ARABIA FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TG THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

At 31 December 2018

6, PREMIUMS RECEIVABLE — NET (continned)

The gross amount of impaired receivablcs amounted to SR 482,706 thousand (31 Deccmber 2017: SR 402,333

thousand). The aging analysis of premiums receivable - nel arising from insurance contracts is as follows:

2018
Past due but Past due and
not impaired impaired Total
Above  Above six

Neither past three and  and up to Above

due nor Upto upiosix twelve twelve

impaived three months months morths months

SR’000
Policyholders 319,248 05,023 100,946 84,753 22,391 623,261
Brokers 170,727 51,298 61,279 39,732 4,374 327410
489975 147221 162,225 124,485 26,765 950,671
2017
Past due but Past due and
not impaired impaired Total
Adbove  Above six

Neither past threeand  andupto Above

due nor Upte  upiosix twelve wehve

impaired three months months monhs months

SR000)

Policyholders 354 485 102,409 92,056 55,889 14,544 619,383
Brokers 119,640 34,563 56,367 37.508 3,295 251,373
Related parties 226 -- -- - - 226
474,351 136,972 148423 93,397 17,839 870,982

Unimpaired receivables are estimated, on the basis of past experience, to be fully recoverable. It is not the practice of
the Company to obtain collateral over receivables,

The Company only enters into insurance and reinsurance contracts with recognised, creditworthy third parties. It is the
Company’s policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit ters are subject to credit verification procedures. In
addition, receivables are monitored on an ongoing basis in order to reduce the Company’s exposure to bad debts.

The five largest customers account for 6.4% (31 December 2017: 10.4%) of the premiums receivable as at 31

December 2018.
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BUPA ARABIA FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

At 31 December 2018
7. INVESTMENTS

Investments are classified as follows:

2018 2017
Insurance  Shareholders’ Insurance  Shareholders’
operations operitions Total  operations operations Totul
SR’000
Held as FVSI 249,284 131,110 380,394 411,441 495,966 907,407
Available-for-sale 560,891 680,206 1,241,097 409,335 404,948 314,283
810,175 811,316 1,621,491 820,776 900,914 1,721,690
(i) Investments held as FVSI comprise of the following:
2018
Insurance operations Shareholders’ operations
Domestic  Imternational Deomesric Imernasional ___ Totel
SR GO0
Sukuks 32,025 -- 95,079 -- 127,104
Funds 217,259 - 36,031 -- 253,290
249,284 —~ 131,110 -~ 380,394
2017
Insurance operations Shareholders ' operations
Domestic Tnrernational Domestic International _TM
SR’000
Sukuks 32,023 - 95,079 -- 127,104
Funds 379,416 - 299,987 - 679,403
Investmenis in discretionary
portfolios -- - 100,200 - 100,900
411,441 -- 495,966 - 907 407
(i) Available-for-sale investments comprise of the following;
2018
Tnsurance operations Sharcholders’ operations
Domestic  Internationul Domestic Internationai ____ Totl
SR’000
Sukuks 241,784 281,828 280,697 186,924 991,232
Funds -- 37279 109,247 10,536 157,062
Investments in discretionary
portfolios - - 92,802 = 91,802
241,784 319,107 482,746 197 460 1,241,097
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BUPA ARABIA FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

At 31 December 2018

7. INVESTMENTS (continued)
2017
Insurance operations Shareholders’ operations
Domestic International Domestic International ____Total
SR 000
Sukuks 152,862 218,972 243,690 145,037 760,561
Funds -- 37,501 - 16,221 53,722
152,862 256,473 243,650 161,258 814,283
The movements in the investments balance are as follows:
2018
Insurance Shareholders’
aperations aperations Total
SAR'006
Balance at the beginning of the year 820,776 900,914 1,721,690
Purchases during the year 1,033,480 794,544 1,828,024
Disposals during the year (1,040,322) (865,503) (1,905,825)
Unrealised losses during the year, net (3,759 {18,639 (22,398)
810,175 311,316 1,621,491
2017
Insurance Skareholders’
operations aperations Total
SAR GO0
Balance at the beginning of the year 544,090 714,330 1,258,420
Purchases during the year 958,724 1,462 848 2,421,572
Disposals during the year {687.758) (1,281,673) (1,969.431)
Unrealised gains during the year, net 5,720 5,409 11,129
820,776 900,914 1,721,690
8. PREPAID EXPENSES AND OTHER ASSETS
Prepaid expenses and other assets comprise of the following:
2018 2017
Insurance  Shareholders’ Insuranice  Shareholders’
operations operations Toral  operations aperarions Total
SR'000
Prepayments 51,251 - 51,251 37,993 - 37,993
Accrued income 45,949 34,119 80,008 60,466 12,993 73,459
Restricted deposits 26,346 -- 26,346 32,683 = 32,683
Other receivables 45,320 -- 45,320 26,393 - 26,393
168,866 34,119 202,985 157,535 12,993 170,528
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BUPA ARABIA FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
At 31 December 2018

9. TERM DEPOSITS

Term deposits are held with reputable commercial banks and financial institutions. These deposits are predominately
i Murabaha structures with a small allocation in Mudaraba structures. They are mostly denominated in Saudi Arabian
Riyals, have an original maturity of more than three months, and yield financial income at rates ranging from 2.27%
t0 4.00% per annum {2017: 2.15% to 4.10% per annum). The movements in term deposits during the year ended 31
December 2018 and vear ended 31 December 2017, respectively are as follows:

2018
Insurance Sharefholders’
aperations aperations Torx!
SR000
Balance at beginning of the year 2,912,577 1,032,806 3,945,383
Matured during the year (3,724,883) (829,977) (4,554,560)
Placed during the year 3,846,049 1,478,709 5,324,758
3,033,743 1,681,538 4,715,281
2017
Insurance Shareholders'
operafions operations Totai
SR 000
Balance at beginning of the year 3057816 987,494 4,045,310
Matured during the year (3,057,316) (987,494) (4,045,310)
Placed during the year 2,912,577 1,032,806 3,945,383
2,912,577 1,032,806 3,945,383
(L8 FIXTURES, FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT
Office, Capital
SJarniture, Compuier Motor Leasehold work in
and fixtures equipment  vehicles improvemenis progress Total
SR’000
Cost:
At 1 Jannwary 2017 73,362 36,357 212 - 26,659 136,590
Additions during the year 1,648 1,274 - - 28,635 31,557
Disposals during the year (573) - - -- - {573)
Transferred during the year 1,340 30 -- -- {1,370} --
At 1 January 2018 75,777 17,661 212 - 53,924 167.574
Additions during the year 1,161 1,469 - 56 3,134 5,820
Disposal during the year {1.020) (2,182) (212) - - (3,4149)
Transferred during the year 9,442 1,601 - 33,515 (53,974) (4,416)
At 31 December 2018 85,360 38,549 -= 38,571 3,084 165,564
Accumulated depreciation:
Al 1 January 2017 37,669 25,130 212 - - 63,011
Charge for the year 6,477 4,601 - - - 11,078
Disposals during the year (132) -- - (132)
At 1 January 2018 44,014 29,731 212 - - 73,957
Charge for the year 6,474 5,309 - 1,716 - 13,499
Disposal during the year (749) (2,174) (212) - - (3,135)
At 31 December 2018 49,739 32,866 - 1,716 - 84,321
Net book value;
At 31 December 2018 35,621 5,683 - 36,855 3,084 81,243
At 31 December 2017 31,763 7,930 -- -- 53,924 93,617
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BUPA ARABIA FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continucd)

At 31 December 2018

11. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Cost:

At 1 Japnary 2017

Additions during the year
Disposals/transfers during the year
At 1 January 2018

Additions during the year
Disposal during the year
Tramsfers during the year

At 31 December 2018

Accumulated amortization:
At 1 January 2017

Charge for the year

At 1 January 2018
Charge for the year
Disposal during the year
At 31 December 20138

Net hook value:
At 31 December 2018

At 31 December 2017

*The capital work in progress relates to software under development,

12, STATUTORY DEPQSIT

Capital work
Software in progress* Total
SR

57,571 8,969 66,540
8,651 19,612 28,263
10,289 (10.289) -
76,511 18,292 94,803
6,072 14,977 21,049
(238) - (238)
1,102 3314 4,416
83,447 36,583 120,030
49,174 - 49,174
5,749 -- 5,749
54,923 - 54,913
8,072 = 8,072
(238) - (238)
62,757 - 62,757
20,690 36,583 57,273
21,588 18,292 39,880

As required by SAMA Insurance Regulations, the Company deposited an amount equivalent to 10% of its paid-up
share capitel, amounting to SR 120 million {(2017: SR 80 million), in a bank designated by SAMA. Accrued income
on this deposit is payable to SAMA amounting to SR 6.9 million (2017; SR 5.1 million) and this deposit cannot be

withdrawn without approval from SAMA.
13, TECHNICAL RESERVES

13.1 Net outstanding claims and reserves

Claims outstanding reserves
Claims incurred but not reported
Claims handling reserve

Less:
Reinsurers’ share of outstanding claims

Reinsurers’ share of claims incurred but not reported

Net outstanding claims reserve

2018 2017
SR’000 SR’000
555,158 450,249
898,123 871,998

19,400 19,289
1,472,681 1,341,536
(336) (360)
(2,678) (670)
(3,014) (1,030)
1,469,667 1,340,506
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BUPA ARABIA FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
At 31 Deccmber 2018

13. TECHNICAL RESERVES (continued)
13.2 Movement in unearned premiums

Movements in unearned premiums are as follows:

2018
Gross Reinsurance Net
SR000
Balance at beginning of the vear 3,091,079 (5,146) 3,085,933
Premium written/{ceded) during the year 8,566,648 (80,528) 8,486,120
Premium earned during the year (8,229,596) 79,354 (8,150,242)
3,428,131 (6,320) 3,421,811
2017
Gross Reinsurance Ne
SR 000
Balance at beginning of the year 3,094,990 (1,356) 3,093,634
Premium written/(ceded) during the year 7,732,961 (68,348) 7,664,613
Premium earned during the year (7.736,872) 64,558 (7.672,314)
3,091,079 (5,146) 3,085,933
14, DEFERRED POLICY ACQUISITION COSTS

2018 2017

SR000 SR'000

Balance at beginming of the year 71,076 72,281

Paid and acerued during the year 226,842 150,436

Amortisation for the year (179,595) (151,641)

118,323 71,076
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BUPA ARABIA FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
At 31 December 2013

15. CLAIMS DEVELOPMENT TABLE

The following table refiects the estimated ultimate claim cost, including claims notified and incurred but not reported
for each successive treatment y2ar at each financial position date, together with the cumulative payments to date. The
development of insurance liabilities provides a measure of the Company's ability to estimate the ultimate value of the
claims. The Company aims to maintain adequate reserves in respect of its insurance business in order to protect against
adverse future claims experience and developments. As claims develop and the ultimate cost of claims becomes more
certain, adverse claitos experiences will be eliminated which results in the release of reserves from earlier treatment
years. In order to maintain adequate reserves, the Company transfers much of this release to the current treatment year
reserves when the development of claims is less mawre and there is much greater uncertainty attached to the ultimate
cost of claims.

Treatment year —
gross outstanding claims 2015 016 2017 2018 Total
SR ‘000
Estimate of ultimate claims cost:

At the end of treatment year 5,309,170 6,319,929 6,577,919 6,949,081

One year later 5,275,355 6,210,269 6,572,547 -

Two years later 5275980 6,212,870 - -

Three years later 5,271,081 = - -
Current estimate of ultimate claims 5,271,081 6,212,870 6,572,947 6,949,081 25,005,979
Ultimate payments to date (3,270,587)  (6,209,074) (6,527,788) (5,545,249) (23,552,698)
Liability recognised in the statement of
financial position 404 3,796 45159 1,403,832 1,453,281
Claims handling provision 15,400
Balance at 31 December 1,472,681
Treatment year —
net outstanding claims
SR ‘000
Estimate of ultimate claims cost:

At the end of treatment year 5,348,275 6,318,209 6,576,889 6,946,067

One year later 5.275.355 6,210,269 6,572,947 -

Two years later 5,275,980 6,212,870 - -

Three years later 5,271,081 - 24 -
Current estimate of nftimate claims 5,271,081 6,212,870 6,572,947 6,946,067 25,002,965
Ultimate payments to date (5,270,587) (6,209,074) (6,527, 78R) (5,545,249) (23,552,698)
Liability recognised in the statement of
financial position 494 3,796 45,159 1,400,818 1,450,267
Claims handling provision 19,400
Balance at 31 December 1,469,667

16. FIDUCIARY ASSETS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, after having SAMA’s approval, the Company entered into a Third Party
Administration agreement (TPA) with a customer under which the Company facilitates healthcare services to the
employees of the customer with specific terms and conditions. The agreement is effective from 1 March 2018. The
services are remunerated against adminisiration fees.

In order to fulfil the commitment relating to this agreement, the Company has received funds in advance from the
customer to seftle anticipated claims from medical service providers. As the Company acts as an agent, the relevant
bank balance and outstanding claims at the reporting date are offset in the statement of financial position, The assets
and liabilities held in fiduciary capacity amounted to SR 194.8 million as of 31 December 2018 (2017: nil).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

At 31 December 2018

17.

The Company’s ¢ommitments and contingencies are as follows:

Letters of guarantec
Operating commitments

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

2018 2017
SR’060 SR’000
26,346 32,682
150,363 169,764
176,709 202,446

i) The Company is subject to legal proceedings in the ordinary course of business. There was no material change

in the status of legal proceedings from 31 December 2017,

ii) As of 31 December 2018, total Letters of Guarantee issued by banks amounted to SR 94.7 million, of which
SR 26.37 million (2017: SR 32.68 million} are issued against restricted deposits with banks and have been
recorded under prepayments and other assets.

18,

ACCRUED AND OTHER LIABILITIES

Accrued and other liabilities comprise of the following:

2018 2007

Insurance  Shareholders’ Insurance  Shareholders’

operations operations Total  operations operations Total
SR’¢00
Accrued expenses 130,075 4,784 134,859 79,390 7,614 87,004
VAT payable 69,911 -- 69,911 -- -- -
Advances from

policyholders 48,567 -- 48,567 36,004 -- 36,004
Other liabilities 32,472 -- 32,472 22,590 - 22,550
281,025 4,784 285,809 137,924 7.614 145,598

19. TRADE MARK FEES

During 2010, the Company entered into an agreement with a related party for obtaining a license to use the tradc
marks (the word Bupa with or without logo) of the rclated party. As per the terms of the agreement, the trade mark
fee is payable at different rates linked to the results of the Company, subject to a maximum of 5% of the Company’s
profits in any financial year, as trade-mark fees. Accordingly, a sum of SR 20.5 million (2017; SR 19,3 million)
payable to a related party has been accrued for during the year (see notes 24 and 32).

20.

Balance at beginning of the year

Income attributable to insurance operations during the year

Surplus paid to policyholders during the year

Net surplus payable to policyholders

INSURANCE OPERATIONS® SURPLUS PAYABLE

2018 2017
SR'000 SR'000
138,581 169,884
48,727 50,302
(47,553) (81,695)
130,755 138,581
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(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
At 31 December 20:18

21. EMPLOYEE END OF SERVICE BENEFITS

Accruals are made in accordance with the actuarial valuation under the projecied unit credit method while the benefit
payments cbligation is discharged as and when it falls due. The amounts recognized in the statement of financial
position and movement in the obligation during the year based on its present value are as follows;

21.1  Movement of defined benefit obligation

2018 2017

SR'000 SR'000

Balance at the beginning of the year 66,469 59,316

Charge to the statement of income during the year 16,226 15,150

Charge to the statement of other comprehensive income during the year 3,922 -

Benefits paid during the year (10,222) (7,997}

Balance at the end of the year 81,395 66469
21.2  Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation

2018 2017

SR’000 SR000

Balance at the beginning of the year 66,469 59,316

Cuirent service costs 13,103 12,405

Financial costs 3,123 2,745

Actuarial loss 3,922 -

Benefits paid during the year (10,222) (7.997)

Balance at the end of the year $1,395 66,469

213 Principal actuarial assumptions

The following range of significant actuarial assumptions was used by the Company for the valuation of defined
benefit obligation liability;

2018
Valuation discount rate 4.60%
Expected rate of increase in salary level across different age bands 6.50%
The impact of changes in sensitivities on present value of defined benefit obligation is as follows:
2018
SR'000
Valuation discount rate
- Increase by 5% 2,149
- Decrease by 5% 2,263
Expected rate of increase in salary level across different age bands
- Increase by 1% 195
~  Decrease by 1% (195)
Mortality rate
- Incrcase by 50% 3
- Decrease by 50% 8
Employee tumover
- Increase by 20% {1,367)
- Decrease by 20% 1,498

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 7.21 years.
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22. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction takes place either:
- inthe accessible principal market for the asset or liability, or
- in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous accessible market for the asset or
liability.

) Determination of fair value and fair value hierarchy
The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments:

Level 10 quoted prices in active markets for the same or identical insirument that an entity can access at the
measurement date;

Level 2: quoted prices in active markets for similar assets and liabilities or other valuation techniques for which all
significant inputs are based on observable market data; and

Level 3: valuation techniques for which any significant input is not based on observable market data.

b) Carrying amounts and fair value

The following table shows the carrying amount and fair value of financial assats, including their levels in the fair
value hierarchy for financial instruments measured ar fair valie. It does not include fair value information for
financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value if the carrying amount is a reasonable
approximation to fair value.

Fair value
Carrying
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total value
SR’000
2018
Financial assets measured at fair
value
- Investments held as FVSI 16,021 364,373 - 380,394 380,394
- Available-for-sale investments §42,262 398.835 - 1,241,097 1,241,097
858,283 763,208 - 1,621,491 1,621,491
Fair value
Carrying
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total value
SR G600
2017
Financial assets measured at fair
value
- Investments held as FVSI 106,200 801,117 - 907,407 907,407
- Available-for-sale investments 453,157 361,126 - 814,283 814,283
559,447 1,162,243 - 1,721,690 1,721,690
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22. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
<) Measurement of fair value
Valuation technigue end significant unobservable inputs

The following table shows the valuation techniques used in measuring Level 2 fair value at 31 December 2018 and
31 December 2017, as well as the significant unobservable inputs used.

Inter-relationship between
significant unobservable

Significant inputs and fair valne
Type Faluation technigue unobservable inputs mMicasurement
Floating rate Valuations are based on Not applicable Not applicable
sukuks and mutual  quotations as received by the
funds custodians at the end of each

period and on published net
asset value (NAV) closing
prices.

23. OPERATING SEGMENTS

The Company only issues short-lerm insurance comiracis for providing health care services (‘medical insurance’).
All the insurance operations of the Company are carried out in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, For management
reporting purposes, the operations are monitored in two customer categories, based on the number of members
covered. Major customers represent members of large corporations, and all others are considered as non-major.
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing the performance of operating segments in
line with the strategic decisions.

Operating segments do not include shareholders’ operations of the Company.

Segment results do not include investment and commission income, other income, selling and marketing expenses,
and general and administration expenses.

Segment assets do not include cash and cash equivalents, term deposits, investments, and prepayments & other
assets. Segment liabilities do not include reinsurance balance payable, acorucd expenses and other liabilities, due to
shareholders’ operations, share-based payment and pelicyholders” share of surplus from insurance operations.
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23. OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued)

Consistent with the Company’s internal reporting, operating segments have been approved by the management in

respect of the Company’s activities, assets and liabilities as stated below:

As at 31 December 2018
Insurance operations
Total -
Mujor Non-major Insurance Shareholders’
Operating segments cHStonLers CHStOMErs operations operations Total
SR 000 SR 000 SRO00

Assets
Premiums receivable - net 558,492 392,179 950,671 - 950,671
Reinsurers’ share of unearned

premiums 2,465 3,855 6,320 - 6,320
Reinsurers’ share of outstanding

claims 306 30 336 - 336
Reinsurers’ share of claims

incurred but not reported 2,437 241 2,678 - 2,678
Deferred policy acquisition costs 72,177 46,146 118,323 < 118,323
Unallocated assets 4,285.311 2,908,257 7,193,568
Total assets 5,363,639 2,908,257 8,271,896
Liabilities
Unearned premiums 2,091,160 1,336,971 3,428,131 - 3,428,131
Outstanding claims 355,301 199,857 555,158 = 555,158
Claims incurred but not teported 574,799 323,324 208,123 - 898,123
Claims handling reserve 12,416 6,984 19,400 -- 19,400
Unallocated liahilities 471,416 333,940 $05,356
Total liabilities 5,372,228 333,940 5,706,168
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23, OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued)

As at 31 December 2017

Insurance operations

Total -
Muajor Non-major Insurance Shareholders’
Operating segments customers Customers aperations operations Toral
SR'000 SR000 SR000

ASSETS
Premium receivable — net 511,677 359,305 870,982 -- 870,982
Reinsurers’ share of unearned

premiums - 5,146 5,146 - 5,146
Reinsurers’ share of

outstanding claims 327 33 360 -- 360
Reinsurers’ share of claims

mncurred but not reported 609 61 670 -- 670
Deferred policy acquisition

costs 41,223 29 853 71,076 -- 71,076
Unallocated assets - -- 4,001,272 2,382,831 6,384,103
Total assets 4,949 506 2382831 7,332,337
LIABILITIES
Unearned premiums 1,890,131 1,200,948 3,091,079 -- 3,091,079
Outstanding claims 296,183 154,066 450,249 - 450,249
Claims incurred but not

reported 550,055 321,943 871,998 = 871,998
Claims handling reserve 12,345 6,944 19,289 - 19,28%
Unallocated habilities - -- 316,178 261,494 577,672
Total liabilities 4,748,793 261,494 5,010,287
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23. OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued)

Operating segments

REVENUES

(iross premiums written

Reinsurance premiums ceded — Local

Reinsurance premiums ceded — International

Net premiums written

Changes in unearned premiums

Changes in reinsurance share of uneamed premiums
Net premiums earned

UNDERWRITING COSTS AND EXPENSES

Gross claims paid

Reinsurers’ share of claims paid

Net claims paid

Changes in outstanding claims

Changes in claims mncurred but not reported

Changes in claims handling reserves

Reinsurance share of changes in outstanding claims

Reinsurance share of changes in claims incurred but
not reported

Net ¢laims incurred

Policy acquisition costs

TOTAL UNDERWRITING COSTS AND
EXPENSES

NET UNDERWRITING RESULTS

OTHER OPERATING (EXPENSESY INCOME

Allowance for doubtful receivables
Unallocated income

Unallocated expenses

TOTAL OTHER OPERATING

(EXPENSES)/INCOME

NET INCOME FOR THE YEAR

Net income attributed to insurance operations
Net income attributed to the shareholders

2018
Major Noen-major
customers customers Total
SR000

5,454,933 3,111,715 8,566,648

(5,991) (3,847) (9,838)
(43,051) (27,639 {70,690)

5,405,891 3,080,229 8,486,120

(201,029) (136,023 337,052)

2,465 (1,291) 1,174

5,207,327 2,942.915 8,150,242

(4,337,336) (2,371,188) {6,708,524)

30,194 18,506 48,700

(4,307,142) (2,352,682) (6,659,824)

(59,113) (d45,791) (104,909)

(24,744) {1,381) (26,125)

(71) (40) (111

@1) 3) 4)

1,828 180 2,008

(4,389,268) (2,399,717} (6,788,985)

(131,711) (65,660) (197,371)

4,520,979 (2,465,377 {6,986,356)

686,348 477,538 1,163,886

(32,256}

198,218

(755.690)

{589,718)

£74,158

(48,727)

525431
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23. OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued)

Operating segments

REVENUES

(ross premiums written

Reinsurance premiums ceded — Local

Reinsurance premiums ceded — International

Net premiums written

Changes in uncarned premiums

Changes in reinsurance share of uncarned premmiwms
Net premiums earned

UNDERWRITING COSTS AND EXPENSES

Gross claims paid

Reinsurers’ share of claims paid

Net claims paid

Changes in outstanding claims

Changes in claims incurred but not reported

Reinsurance share of changes in outstanding claims

Reinsurance share of changes in claims incurred but not
reporied

Net claims incurred

Policy acquisition costs

TOTAL UNDERWRITING COSTS AND EXPENSES

NET UNDERWRITING RESULTS

OTHER OPERATING (EXPENSESY INCOME

Allowancc for doubtful receivables
Unallocated income

Unallocated expenses

TOTAL OTHER OPERATING

(EXPENSESYINCOME

NET INCOME FOR THE YEAR

Net income attributed to insurance operations
Net income attributed to the shareholders

2017
Major Non-major
customers customers Total
SR 000

4,727,398 3,005,563 7,732,961
(3,549 {2,043) (5,592)
(39,832) (22,924) (62,756}
4,684,017 2,980,596 7,664,613
5,656 (1,745} 3,011

5,481 (1,691) 3,790
4,695,154 2.977,160 7,672,314
{4,123,230) (2,305,387) (6,428 617)
28.300 15,918 44,218
(4,094,930} (2,289,469) (6,384,399)
(72,129) (40,571} (112,700)
59,384 33,402 92,786
(155) (87) (242)
(287) (161) (448)
(4,108,117) (2,290,880) (6,403,003)
(111,060) {71,006} (182,066)
4,219,177) (2,367,892} (6,587,069)
475,977 609,268 1,085,245
(3,718)

157,832

(688,353}

{534,239)

551,006

(50,392)
500,614
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4. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

Related parties represent major sharcholders, Board members and key management personnel of the Company, and
companies of which they arc principal owners and any other entities controlled, jointly controlled or significantly
influenced by them. Contract pricing policies and terms are conducted on an arm®s length basis and transactions
approved by the Company’s management, or where required and applicable the Company’s Board of Directors. The
tollowing are the details of the major related party transactions during the year and their related balances:

Nuature of Receivable/(payabie)
Related party transaction Amount of transactions balance as at
2018 2017 2018 2017
SR’'000 SR'000 SR’000 SR 000
Sharcholders Insurance premium
written 70,343 29,834 (498)** 226%*
Shareholders Reinsurance
Premium ceded 14,939 9,252 (23,241 (11,476)*
Sharcholders Claims paid 38,910 13,954 (2,784) %% {1,113)*+*
Shareholders Medical costs
charged by
providers 38,817 1,237 (110)*+% (138)%5*
Shareholders Expenses charged
to/from a related
party _net 1,927 284 @n* (820)*
Sharcholders Tax equalisation ~
net 2,120 - 2,988+ (1,169)*
Shareholders Board and
committee
member 858 800 (258)* (800)*
remuneration fees
Bupa Middle
East Holdings
Two W.LL.
(Related party)  Trade mark fee 20,542 19,321 (20,542)* (19,321)*
Board member  Shariah review
(related party) services -- 119 - -
*  Amounts due to related parties amounted to SR 41,095 thousand (2017: SR 33,586 thousand).
*#  Amounts included in premium receivables.
¥4% Amounts are included in the outstanding claims.
a. Compensation to key management personnel:
2018 2017
SAR GRG0 SAR 0060
Salaries and allowances (note (a) below) 17,728 16,888
Incentives (note (b) below) 14,040 14178
End of Service 978 879
32,746 31,945

a)  Includes the members’ direct salary related expenses, other than the incentives’ and EOS expenses.

b)  Includes the costs of the bonuses and the long term incentive plan.
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24, RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES (continued)

b. Board of Directors' remuneration and related expenses
2018 2017
SAR'008 SAR 000
Board of Directors’ remuneration (note (a) below) 2,856 2,900
Board attendance fees (note (b) below) B {96)
Other board and sub-committees’ expenses (note (¢} below) 823 740
3,679 3,544

a) Board of Directors’ remuneration is paid in accordance with the By-Laws of the Company, and the Board
Member Remuneration Policy as approved by the public shareholders.

h) Per the shareholder approved Board and Board Committee Member Remuneration policies no Board or
Board Committee atiendance fee allowances are paid/payable by the Company so in 2018 attendance fees
are nil and the 2016 attendance fees accrued were not paid but were reversed during 2017,

<) Other board and sub-committee expenses includes the fees of the non-Boeard members for attending the Board
Committee meetings, in accordance with the Board Committee Member Remuneration Policy, as approved
by the public shareholders, and alsc include other related BoardBoard Committee meeting expenscs
incurred.

15, REINSURERS’ BALANCE PAYABLE

Reinsurance payable represents amounts payable to reinsurers of SR 50.6 million (2017: SR 39.6 million), for the
excess of loss (XOL) reinsurance contract,
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26, ZAKAT AND INCOME TAX
a) Zakar
The Zakat payable by the Company has been caleulated in accordance with Zakat regulations in Saudi Arabia.

The Zakat provision for the year is based on the following:

2018 2017
SR000 SR'000
Share capital 486,000 526,000
Opening retained earings, reserve and surplus 835,259 747,924
Opening provisions 127,054 133,021
Adjusted net income 356,563 232,016
Fixtures, furniture, equipment and goodwill (141,588) (59,431)
Investments (3,849,589) (3,781,.987)
Others (72,900) (117,035)
Adjusted income attributable to Saudi shareholders
and the general public (refer (¥) below) (2,259,201) (2,319,492)

*As disclosed in note 27, during the current year, the sharcholding attributable to Saudi shareholdcrs and the general
public has changed from 65.75% to 60.75%. Adjusted income has been computed on a pro-rata basis taking into
consideration before and after shareholding change.

The differences between the financial and the “Zakatable” results are mainly due to certain adjustments in
accordance with the relevant fiscal regulations.

The Zakat charge relating to the Saudi shareholders consists of:

2018 2017

SR’000 SR’000

Provision for zakat @ 2.5% 8,914 8.822
Adjustment for assessment of zakat 35,610 39,240
Adjustment for previous years 4,124 S
48 648 48,062

The movements in the Zakat provision during the year were as follows:

2018 2017
SR'000 SR'000
Balance at beginning of the year 144,326 108,942
Charge for the year 48,648 48,062
Payment made during the year {8,679) (12,678)
184,205 144,326
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26. ZAKAT AND INCOME TAX (continued)

b Income Tax
2018 2617
SR 000 SR'000
Charge for the year 40,551 31,167
The movement in the income tax provision during the year was as follows:
2018 2017
SR'O00 SR '000
Balance at beginning of the year 4,378 8,011
Charge for the year 40,551 31,167
Payment made during the year (29,440) (34,800)
15,489 4378
<} Provision for zakat and income tax
2018 2017
SR600 SR'000
Zakat payable (note (a) above) 184,295 144,326
Income tax payable (note {(b) above) 15489 4,378
199,784 148,704
d) Status of assessment

The Company has filed its zakat and income tax returns for the financial years up to and including the year 2017
with the General Authority of Zakat and Tax (the “GAZT").

In prior years, the Company has received assessments for the fiscal periods 2008 through 2010 raising additional
demands aggregating to SR 9 million, principally on account of disallowance of FVSI investments and statwtory
deposits from the zakat base. The Company has filed appeals against these assessments with the GAZT. Further,
for the years 2011 and 2012, the Company has received Preliminary Objection Committee’s decisions in favour of
the GAZT for the additional zakat liability of SR 17 million and has filed an appeal with the Higher Appeal
Committee.

The Company has recently received final assessments for the fiscal vears 2013 chrough 2016 of additional zakat,
corporate income tax and withholding tax as well as delay fine on the assessed additional corporate income tax and
withholding tax. The differences have mainly arisen due to disallowance of investments and statutory deposits from
the zakat base as well as not taking into consideration the tax and zakat already settled along with the tax / zakat
declarations for the respective years. The Company has filed appeals against these assessments with the GAZT.

The Company is also awaiting GAZT’s decision on additicnal submissions of 2014 relating to the treatment of the
statatory deposit and the cooperative distribution for the fiscal periods 2008 through 2013.
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27. SHARE CAPITAL

The authorised, issved and paid-up capital of the Company was SR 1,200 million at 31 December 2018 (31
December 2017: SR 800 million) consisting of 120 million shares (31 December 2017: 80 million shares) of SR 10
cach.

On 7 August 2018, afier receiving the required approvals, Bupa Investments Overseas Limited purchased 5%
shareholding in the Company from the Nazer Group, 0.09% from ASAS Health Care Company Limited, and 4.91%
from Modern Computer Programs Company Limited. Bupa Investments Overseas Limited, as at 31 December 2018
owns 39.25% (2017: 34.25%) and Nazer Group owns 13.09% (2017: 18.09%).

During the year, there has been 50% increase in the share capital of the Company by way of issuance of bonus
shares. The increase in share capital was funded from the retained eamings account by transferring an amount of
SR 400 million which tesulted i an increase in authorized, issued and paid up share capital to SR 1,200 million
from SR 300 million. The number of issued shares have increased from Eighty Million (80,000,000) to One Hundred
Twenty Million (120,000,000) shares. The Company received all required approvals from the authoritics and the
shareholders approved this capital increase, as well as the related changes in the By-laws of the Company, in the
Extraordinary General Assembly meeting held on 22 November 2018. The new bonus shares capital was issued by
Tadawul on 25 November 2018 and the update of the Company’s By-Laws completed during January 2019, The
final formalitics relating to update the Commercial Registration of the Company will be completed during the first
quarter of 2019,

The shareholding structure of the Company as at 31 December 2018, was reflected as below:

2018 2017
Holding Holding
Pereentage SR 000 Percentage SR 000
Major shareholders 52.3% 628,006 52.3% 418,710
General Public 47.7% 571,934 47.7% 381,290
100.0% 1,200,000 100.0% 800,000

28. STATUTORY RESERVE

As required by the Saudi Arabian Insurance Regulations, 20% of the shareholders’ income shall be set aside as a
statutory reserve until this reserve amounts to 100% of the paid-up share capital. The Company makes this transfer
on an annual basis at 31 December, As at 31 December 2018, SR 609.1 million (31 December 2017: SR 504.02
million) had been set aside as a statutory reserve, representing 51% (31 December 2017: 63%) of the paid-up share
capital.

29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Company offers a Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) to certain eligible employees and the purpose of the
scheme is to incentivise the senior management team to achieve the Company’s long-term goals and to attract and
retain top performers. The plan provides focus on both current and future performance and enables the participants
to share in the Company’s success, and is measured based on net profit growth and profit margin. The plan vests
over a period of a three years performance cycle. The Company's actual performanice is assessed at the end of each
year during the vesting period.

The LTIP scheme is an entirely equity-settled share based scheme under which the approved participants will
receive Bupa Arabia shares after the completion of each three year performance period, the achievement of the
performance measures, the achievement of the participant’s conditions, and the completion of the required
approvals. The LTIP scheme is supervised by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (N&RC) after being
approved by the Board of Directors.
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29, SHARE-BASED PAYMENT {(continued)

The cost of the plan is recognised over the period in which the service condition is fulfilied, ending on the date on
which the relevant employees become fully entitled to the plan (‘the vesting date'). The expense, recognised for the
plan at each reporting date until the vesting date, reflects the Company's best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit for a year represents the movement in cumulative expense
recogmised as at the beginning and end of that year.

The total LTIP expense recognised for employees' services received is charged to the statement of income with a
corresponding increase in the statement of changes in equity, as per the requirements of IFRS 2 ‘Share Based
Payments’. Any dividend distributions on the award shares during the vesting period are accumulated and
transferred to the participants upon vesting.

The Company has a practice to reflect the grant date as the date of completion of the total LTIP shares purcfhases
for the relevant cycle each year and to retain the LTIP shares with an investment broker, currenily NCB Capital.

The LTIP transaction details are provided below:

Number of shares The grant date Amount
purchased / fair value of the 31 December 2018
Month/Period (delivered/disposed) — net shares SR'000
July 2015 32,110 277 8,901
November 2015 18,993 221 4,200
December 2015* 51,103 - --
March 2016 92,669 1i5 10,693
March 2016 {2,814 139 (390)
March 2017 {34,346) 139 (4,761)
March 2017 (6,825) 115 (788)
Tune 2017 96,491 115 11,060
March 2018 (10,210) 139 (1,415)
May 2018 (37,986) 111 (4,200)
June 2018** (15,378) 139 (2,132)
September 2018%** 121,816 94 11,494
November 201 8+*¥* 152,811 - -
Total 458,434 32,662
* During December 2015, the Company issued Bonus shares, one per each issucd shave, and as « yesult

received an additional 51,103 LTIP shares.

ok The 2015-2017 LTIP Scheme’s shares have been filly delivered to all entitled executives following the
approval of the Board Nomination and Remuneration Commifiee,

*¥+  The LTIP Scheme shares purchase value for the 2018-2020 cycle was formally approved by the shareholders
in the General Assembly meeting of 31 May 2018 and these LTIP shares purchases were partially completed
on 12 June 2018, at an average purchase price per share of SR 97, and the remaining requived LTIP shares
purchases for this cycle were completed on 4 September 2018, at an average purchase price per share of
SR 90,

*kk  During November 2018, the Company issued Bonus shaves, one for every two issued share, and as a resull
received an additional 152,811 LTIP shares.
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36, CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes share capital and all other equity reserves
attributable to the shareholders. Objectives are set by the Board of Directors of the Company to maintain healthy
capital ratios to support its business objectives and maximise shareholders’ vatue. The Company manages its capital
requirements by assessing shortfalls between reported and required capital levels on a regular basis. Adjustments to
current capital levels are made in light of changes in market conditions and the risk characteristics of the Company’s
activities, To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders or issue shares, Total capital amounted to SR 2,598,322 thousand (31 December 2017: SR 2,333,032).

In the opinion of the Board of Directors, the Company has fully complied with the regulatory capital requirements
during the reported financial year. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing

<apital during the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

31. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

2018 2017
Insurance  Shareholders’ Insurance  Shareholders’
operations operations Total  operations operations Total
SR000
Employees’ costs 328,907 - 328,907 267,899 - 267,899
Rents and
maintenance costs 32,590 - 32,590 31,374 - 31,374
Travelling expenses 8,092 - 8,092 8,937 - 8,937
Depreciation and --
amortization 21,571 21,571 16,827 - 16,827
Communication
expenses 6,858 - 6,858 8,934 - 3.934
Board expenses - 3,990 3,990 -- 3,544 3,544
Others 25,300 6,369 31,678 35,103 7,509 42,612
423,327 10,359 433,686 369,074 11,053 380,127
32. SELLING AND MARKETING EXPENSES
2018 2017
SR'000 SR’600
Empioyees’ costs 108,733 117,274
Marketing expenses 33,450 26,530
Fulfilmenti costs 11,235 10472
Statutory levies 119,066 110,565
Trade mark fee (see note 19) 20,542 19,321
Others 28,978 24,064
322,004 308,226
33. INVESTMENT INCOME, NET
2018 2017
Insurance  Shareholders’ Insuwrance  Shareholders’
operations operations Total  operations operations Total
SR'000
Comunission income 92,315 74,667 166,982 91,102 43,027 134,120
Realised gains on
investment, net 2,516 7,686 10,202 3,559 8,257 11,816
Unrealised gains on
FVSI investments, net 5,543 1,423 6,966 5,007 7,289 12,296
100,374 83,776 184,150 99 668 58,573 158,241
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34. DIVIDENDS

On 17 April 2018, the Company’s Board of Directors proposed to pay a dividend, for the year ended 31 December
2017, of SR 2 per share totaling SR 160 million to its shareholders (2016: SR120 million). This dividend proposal
was presented and approved by the shareholders in the Extracrdinary General Assembly meeting, held on 31 May
2018, and accordingly, the dividend payment was completed on 11 June 2018,

33 EARNINGS PER SHARE

The basic eamings per share has been calculated by dividing net income for the year by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares issued and outstanding at year end. Diluted earnings per share is not applicable to the
Company.

The earnings per share for the previous year, of SR 4.18 per share, has been calculated based on the weighted
average number of shares in issue after the 2018 capital increase, to 120,000,000 (one bundred and twenty million)
shares, as was approved during the Extraordinary General Assembly meeting of the shareholders during the year,
and the prior year earnings per share adjusunent bas been made in accordance with the relevant International
Accounting Standards,

36. RISK MANAGEMENT
a) Insurance risk

The Company provides short-term health insurance contracts in Sandi Arabia. Accordingly, the main insurance
Risk within the Company is the claims reserve risk resulting from fluctuations in the estimated vltimate claims. The
Company seeks to manage this through close monitoring of the claims’ trend and payments’ pattern o ensure that
sufficient reserves are available to cover claim liabilities, The Company also have an exiemal actuary to perform
quarterly independent reviews of the reserves adequacy.

The Company has a reinsurance arrangement to reduce its exposure throngh transfer of risk. The reinsurance
agreement is an excess of loss treaty per person per claim on losses ocourring basis.

i The nitimate liability arising from ¢laims made under insurance contracts

Claims reserves which are key components of the Company’s ultimate liability are estimated amounts of the
outstanding claims, incurred but not reported claims (“IBNR”) and claims handling provisions. These reserves do
not represent exact calculations but rather expectations based on historical claims” trend (frequency and severity),
payments’ pattern, medical inflation, members® behaviour, seasonality and other factors,

The Company has a large insurance portfolio resulting in stable claims development patterns which relatively
reduces the risk of fluctuations in the estimated ultimate claims. The shori-tailed nature of the business is associated
with higher consistency of the reserve estimates. The Company continually review the adequacy of claims reserves
by conducting back-testing analysis, assessing the sufficiency of data, monitoring claims backlogs and settlement
patterns. In addition, the external actuary runs independent valuation models after due reconciliation with financial
statements to validate reserve adequacy.

ii) Concentration of insurance risk

The insurance risk exposure related to policyholders is mainly concentrated in Saudi Arabia, However, through its
underwriting strategy, the Company ensures that the portfolio is well diversified and not concentrated within few
large clients. Its business is proportionally spread across all regions in the Saudi Arabia, and the Company targeis
both comporate and retail business, The insurance portfolio is not concentrated in a specific benefit level {diverse
medical providers, different deductibles, annual limits and sub-limits}.
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BUPA ARABIA FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

(A SAUDIL JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
At 31 December 2018

36. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
a) Insurance risk fcontinued)

jii) Process used to decide on assumptions

The pricing team follows the Company’s underwriting guidelines (approved by the Board of Directors) in setting
premiums taking into ¢onsideration credible claims experiences for both new business and renewals or medical
declarations.

Assumptions used in determining claims reserves are based on the best estimate. Ultimate claims are estimated
using historical claim trends adjusted for tnflation, seasonality, membership growth and any other external or
imernal factors that may have impact on claim costs. Given the nature of the business, the Company may still be
exposed to risk of insufficiency of claim reserves for which actual claim cost may tum out 0 be higher than the
initial estimated ultimate claims.

The estimation of IBNR is generally subject 1o a greater degree of uncertainty than the estimation of the outstanding
claims which are received but not yet settled with the providers. For the case of outstanding claims, the Company
uses payment information of settled batches with providers to estimate the expected settlement amounts of recently
submitted batches, while it uses mainly pre-authorization data to estimate IBNR. The Company seeks to avoid
inadecquate reserve levels by adopting established processes in determining claim reserve and using updated
information from both claims received and pre-authorization data.

The premium liabilities have been determined as such that the total premium liability provisions (unearned premium
reserve and premium deficiency reserve, if applicable and required as per the result of the Liability adequacy test}
would be sufficient to service the future expected claims and expenses likely to occur on the unexpired policies.
The expected fatre liability is determined using the Company’s loss ratio adjusted for seasonality and portfolio
mix for the remaining imearned period. The details of estimation of the outstanding ¢laims and premium deficiency
reserves are given under Notes 2{(d)(i).

iv) Sensitivity analysis

The Company believes that the claim liabilities under insurance contracts outstanding at year end are adequate.
However, these amounts are not certain and actual payments may differ from the claims liabilitics provided in the
financial statements. The insurance claim liabilities are sensitive to the various assumptions, It has not been possible

to quantify the sensitivity of specific variable such as legislative changes or uncertainty in the estimation process.

An assumed 5% change in the claim ratio, net of reinsurance, would impact net underwriting income as follows:

2018 2047
SRG00 SR 000
Impact of change in claim ratio by 5% + 407,512 + 383,616
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BUPA ARABIA FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

(A SAUDIJOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
At 31 December 2018

36, RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
b) Reinsurance risk

The Company has a reinsurance arrangement to reduce its exposure through transfer of insurance risk, The
reinsurance agreement is an excess of loss treaty per person per claim on losses occurring basis. Such arrangement
protects the Company from large claims with a reasonable ceded premium given the stable underwriting
performance and the size of the insurance portfolio.

The Reinsurers are selected based on the following criteria;

- Allreinsurers should meet SAMA’s minimum acceptable rating of BBB (S&P Rating).
- The reinsurers’ panel and the agreement should be reviewed and approved by the Company’s Board of
Directors.

Reinsurance ceded business does not relieve the Company from its obligations to policyholders and as a result the
Company remains liable for the portion of outstanding claims reinsured to the extent that the remsurer fails to meet
the obligations under the reinsurance agreements.

) Market risk

Market risk refers to the potential impact of various market dynamics on the fair value or the expected cash flows
of financial instruments. The Company adopts asset allocation guidelines and diversification limits on asset ¢lasses,
geographies, correncies and securities to ensure that market risk is contained and kept to minimal levels.

The Board of Directors sets the overall risk appetite to a prudent level that does not impact the Company’s operating
results. The management prepares monthly and quarterly reports, highlighting deployment activities and exposure
limits 10 ensure that appropriate monitoring and compliance with the approved guidelines. Management performs
continuous assessment of developments in relevant markets to ensure that market risk is monitored and mitigated
at the asset class and securities levels.

Market risk comprises three types: interest rate risk, price risk and currency risk.
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BUPA ARABIA FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIATL STATEMENTS (continued)
At 31 December 2018

348, RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
c) Market visk (continued)

i Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the potential change in the fair value of financial instruments and expected cash flows as a result
of changes in interest rates. Management constantly monitors developments in global and local interest raies and
accordingly allocates the durations of its term deposits and sukuk investments.

Investmeats in term deposits and sukuk instruments have varicus maturities in order to maximize investment refarns
while ensuring that liquidity requirements are continuously met. Details of maturities of interest bearing securities
as at 31 December are as follows:

2018
Less than 3 3 meonths te 1 year to More than
months 1 year 3 years 3 years Total
SR’000
Term deposits 1,203,010 1,885,784 1,476,487 150,000 4,715,281
Investments in Sukuk 2,000 50,774 260,223 805,340 1,118,337
1,205,010 1,936,558 1,736,710 955,340 5,833,618
2017
Less than 3 3 months to I year to Movre than
months 1 year 3 years 3 years Total
SR'000
Term deposits 797,521 2,171,247 776,615 200,000 3,945,383
Investments in Sukuk - 37,580 168,695 681,390 887,665
797,521 2,208,827 945,310 881,390 4,833,048

) Price risk

Price risk is the potential change in the fair value of financial instruments as a result of instrument-specific
developments or systemic factors affecting the overall market in which the instrument is being traded.

The total size of investments which are exposed to market price risk is SR 1,621 million (2017: SR 1,721 millien).
The Company manages this risk conducting thorough due diligence on each instrument prior to investing as well as
maintaining exposure limits guidelines to minimize the potential impact of marking to market on the overall
portfolio.

The potential impact of a 10% increase or decrease in the market prices of investments on Company's profit would
be as follows:

Effect on Company’s profit
Fair value change SR*000
2018 + 10% + 38,042
2017 + 10% + 90,741

The above sensitivity analysis is only on FVIS investments which directly impact the Company’s profit.

49



BUPA ARABIA FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
At 31 December 2018

36, RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

€) Market risk {continued)

*

i) Currency risk

Currency risk is the potential fluctuation of the value of a financial instrument due to changes in foreign gxchar}ge
rates. Alt Company’s transactions are i Saudi Arabian Riyals and US Dollar. Given the peg of Saudi Arabian
Riyals and US Dollars, foreign exchange risk is minimal,

d) Credit visk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and canse the other
party to incur a financial loss.

The Company seeks to manage its credit risk with respect to customers by following the Company’s credit control
policy and monitoring ouistanding receivables on an on-geing basis in order to reduce the Company”s exposure to
bad debts. The management estimates specific impairment provisions on a case by case basis. In addition to specific
provisions, the Company also makes an additional portfolio provision, estimated on a collective basis, based on the
ageing profile of the premiums receivable. The Company seeks to limit its credit risk with respect to other
counterparties by placing term deposits and investments with reputable financial institutions. The Company enters
into reinsurance contracts with recognised, creditworthy third parties {rated A or above).

The following table shows the maximum exposure to credit risk by class of financial asset:

2018 2017

SR000 SR000

Cash and cash equivalents 290,413 229,884
Premiums receivable — net 950,671 870,982
Reinsurers’ share of outstanding claims 336 360
Reinsurers’ share of ¢laims incurred but not reported 2,678 670
Investments 1,621,491 1,721,690
Other receivables 151,734 132,535
Term deposits 4,715,281 3,945,383
Statutory deposit 120,000 80,000
Accrued incomc on statatory deposit 6,882 5,121
7,859,486 6,986,625
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BUPA ARABIA FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continned)
At 31 December 2018

3é. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
) Credit visk (continued)

The table below provides information regarding the credit risk exposure of the Company by classifying assets
according to the Company’s credit rating of counterparties. Investment grade ratings refers to companies with sound
credit standing of AAA to BBB- (as per S&P) and/or Aaa to Baa3 (as per Moody’s). Ratings below the mentioned
threshold are considered sub-investment grade with a higher default risk.

2018
Non-investment grade
Investment
grade Not impaired Impaired Total
SR’000
Cash and cash equivalents 290,413 - - 290,413
Premiums receivable — net - 637,196 313,475 950,671
Reinsurer’s share of outstanding claims 136 - -- 336
Reinsurers’ share of claims Incurred but
not reported 2,678 - - 2,678
Investments 1,621,491 - - 1,621,491
Other receivables 149,506 - - 149,506
Term deposits 4,715,281 -- - 4,713,281
Statutory deposit 120000 - - 120,000
Accrued income on statutory deposit 6,882 - - 6,882
6,906,587 637,196 313,475 7,857,258
2017
Non-investment grade
Investment
grade Notimpaired Impaired Total
SR’'000

Cash and cash equivalents 229,884 -- - 229,884

Premiums receivable — net - 611,323 259,659 270,982

Reinsurer’s share of outstanding claims 360 - - 360

Reinsurers’ share of claims Incurred but

not reported 670 - -- 670

Investments 1,721,690 - - 1,721,690

Other receivables 130,063 - B 130,063

Term deposits 3,945,383 - - 1,045,383

Stattory deposit 80,000 -- - 80,000

Accrued income on statutory deposit 5,121 -- - 3,121

6,113,171 611,323 259,659 6,984,153
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BUPA ARABIA FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continucd)
At 31 December 2018

36. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
¢) Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its operational or financial obligations when they
are due. Liquidity requirements are monitored on monthly basis and management ensures that sufficient liquid funds
are available to meet any commitments as they arise.

Unearned premiums have been excluded from the analysis as they ate not contractual obligations. The table below
summarizes the maturity profile of the financial liabilities of the Company based on remaining expected
undiscounted contractual obligations:

2018
Up to More than Total
one year one year
SR’000
Accrued and other liabilities 204,414 31,395 285,809
Reinsurers' balances payable 50,636 - 50,636
Outstanding claims 555 158 - 555,158
Claims incurred but not reported 398,123 - 898,123
Claims handling reserve 19,400 - 19,400
Due to related parties 41,095 - 41,095
Provision for end-of-service benefits 7,871 73,524 81,305
Zakat and income tax 2,403 197,381 199,784
Accrued income payable to SAMA - 6,882 6,882
1,779,100 359,182 2,138,282
2017
Upto More than Total
one year ane year
SR000

Accrued and other liabilities 79,129 66,469 145,598
Reinsurers’ balances payable 39,613 - 39,613
Outstanding claims 450,249 - 450,249
Claims incurred but not reported 871,998 - 871,998
Claims handling reserve 19,289 - 19,289
Due 1o related parties 33,586 - 33,586
Provision for end-of-service benefits 10,222 56,247 66,469
Zakat and income tax 10,841 137,863 148,704
Accrued income payable to SAMA - 5,121 5,121
1,514,927 265,700 1,780,627

i) Liquidity profile

All assets excluding investments, fixtures, furniture and equipment, intangible agsets, goodwill, statutory deposit
and accrued income on statutory deposit, are expected to be recovered or setiled after one year. Term deposits
amounting to SR 3,142 Million (31 December 2017: SR 3,006 Million) mature within one year and the remaining
balance have maturities greater than one year.

None of the financial liabilities on the staternent of financial position are based on discounted cash flows ,with
exception of defined benefit obligation and are all payable on a basis as set out above. There are no differences
between contractual and expected maturity of the financial liabilities of the Company.
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BUPA ARABIA FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

(A SAUDIJOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
At 31 December 2018

36. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

¥/ Operation risk

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with the
processes, technology and infrastructure supporting the Company’s operations either internally within the Company
or externally at the Company’s service providers, and from factors other than credit, market and liquidity risks sach
as those arising from regulatory requirements. Operational risks arise from all of the Company’s activities.

The Company’s objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance limiting of financial losses and damage to
its reputation with achieving its investment objective of generating returns for investors. The primary responsibility
for the development and implementation of controls over operational risk rests with the Board of Directors. This
responsibility encompasses the controls in the following arzas:

- Requirements for appropriate segregation of duties between various functions, roles and responsibilities;

- Requirements for the reconciliation and monitoring of transactions;

- Compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements;

- Documentation of controls and procedures;

- Requiremients for the periodic assessment of operational risks, and the adequacy of controls and procedures to
address those risks;

- Ethical and business standards; and

- Risk mitigation policies and procedures.
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BUPA ARABIA FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continned)

At 31 December 2018

37 SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (continucd)

Statement of Cash flows

CASH FLOWS FROM

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income attributed to the
sharcholders

Adjustments for non-cash items:

Net income attributed to the
insurance operations

Drepreciation of fixtures, furniture
and equipment

Amortization of intangible assets

Share based-payments expense

Allowance of doubtful
receivables

Unrealised gains on investments
held as FVSI

Realized gains on investments

Provision for end-of-service
benefits

Loss on disposal of fixture,
furniture and equipment

Changes in operating assets and
liabilities:

Premiums receivable

Reinsurers’ share of uneamed
premiums

Reinsurers’ share of outstanding
claims

Reinsurers’ share of ¢laims
incurred but not reported

Deferred policy acquisition costs

Prepaid expenses and other assets

Accrued and other liabilities

Reinsurers' balances payable

Uncarned premiums

Outstanding claims

Claims incurred but not reported

Claims handling reserve

Due to related partics

Due to sharcholders’ operations

End-of-service benefits paid
Surplus paid to policyholders
Zakat and income tax paid
Net cash generated from
operating activities

2018 2017

Share- Share-

Insurance holders’ Insurance holders’
operations _ operations Total operations  operations Total
SR 000 SR G00 SR*000 SR 000 SR000 SR'000
- 525,431 525,431 -- 500,614 500,614
48,727 -- 48,727 50,392 -- 50,392
13,499 o 13,499 11,078 -- 11,078
$.072 - 8,072 5,749 - 5,749
-- 3,106 8,106 -- 5,837 5,837
32,256 - 32,256 3,718 -- 3,718
(5,543) (1,423) (6,966) (5,007 (7,289) (12,294)
{2,516) (7,686) (10,202) (3,559} (8,257) (11,816)
- 16,226 16,226 -- 12,673 12,673
- 272 272 - 433 433
(111,945) -- (111,945) 105,843 - 105,843
(1,174) - (1,174) (3.790) -- (3,790)
24 - 24 242 - 242
(2,008) - (2,008) 448 -- 448
41,247 - {47,247 1,205 e 1,205
(11,331) (21,126} (32,45T) (25,989) 4,452 (21.537)
143,041 (2,830} 144,211 (33,308) 4,790 (28,518)
11,023 - 11,023 24,494 -- 24 496
337,082 = 337,052 {3,911) = (3,911)
104,909 = 104,909 112,700 - 112,700
25,125 - 26,125 (92,786) == (92.786)
111 = 111 - — -
- 7.509 7.500 - 9,242 9,242
(221,571) 221,571 - 34,696 (34,696) -
321,504 746,050 1,067,554 182,217 487,799 670,016
- (10,222) (10,222) - (5,5200 (3,520)
(47,553) - {47,553) (81,695) - (81.,695)
- (38,119) (38,119) - (47.478) (47.478)
273,951 697,709 971,660 100,522 434,301 535,323
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BUPA ARABIA FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
At 31 December 2018

37, SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (continued)

Statement of Cash flows {continued)

2018 2017
Share- Share-
Insurance holders’ Insuragnce holders’
operations  operations Total operations  operations Total
SR060 SR 000 SR ‘000 SR ‘000 SR (M0 SR 000
CASH FLOWS FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Placement in term deposits (3,846,049) (1,478,709) (5,324,758) 2,912,577y  (1,032,806)  (3,945,383)
Proceeds from maturity of term
deposits 3,724,883 829,977 4,554,860 3,057,816 987,494 4,045,310
Additions to investments (1,033,480)  (794,544) (1,828,024) 958,724y  (1,462,848)  (2,421,572)
Disposals of investments 1,042,838 873,189 1,916,027 691,317 1,289,930 1,981,247
Additions to fixlures, [urniture
and equipment - (5,820) (5,820} - (31,557) (31,557)
Disposal of furniture, furniture
and equipment - 7 7 - 8 8
Intangible assets acquired i (21,049} {21,049) i {28,263) {28,263)
Increasc in statutory deposit - (40,000) {(40,000) -- -- --
Purchase of shares under LTIP -
nct - (11,494) (11,494) - (11,059) (11,059
Net cash used in investing
activities (111,808) (648,443) (760,251) {122,168) (2%89,101) {411,269
CASHFLOWS FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid - (160,000) (160,000) -- (120,000) (120,000}
Income tax recovered from non-
Saudi shareholders’ -- 9,120 9,120 - - =
Net cash nsed in financing
activities - (150,880) (150,880) - {120,000 (120,000)
Net change in cash and cash
equivalents 162,143  (101,614) 60,529 (21,646) 25,700 4,054
Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year 110,384 119,500 229,884 132,030 93,800 225,830
Cash and cash equivalents at
end of the year 272,527 17,886 290,413 113,384 119,500 220 884

38. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified and regrouped to conform with the current year’s presentation
as disclosed in note 2 to these financial staternents,

The amounts “due to/from” shareholders and insurance operations which were previously reporied separately in the
respective statement of financial position, are now eliminated. In addition the 90/10 split of the surplus from
insurance operations between shareholders and insurance operations are presented separately in the supplementary
information (refer to note 37 above}.

39. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors, on 5 Rajab 1440H comresponding to 12
March 2019,
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